
 

Agenda 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Regular Council Meeting 
to be held at the City Hall, Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C. 
To view the Council Meeting, visit www.penticton.ca   

  
Tuesday, January 17, 2023 

at 1:00 p.m. 
 
 
1. Call Regular Council Meeting to Order 
 
2. Introduction of Late Items  
 
3. Adoption of Agenda  

 
4. Recess to Committee of the Whole 

 
5. Reconvene the Regular Council Meeting 
 
6. Adoption of Minutes:  
 

6.1 Minutes of the December 20, 2022 Regular Council Meeting           1-7                    Adopt 
 
7. Consent Agenda: 

 
Recommendation: THAT Council approve the Consent Agenda.                      8-13 
 
Consent Agenda:  

 
1. Minutes of the December 20, 2022 Committee of the Whole Meeting; and 

 
2. Minutes of the December 20, 2022 Public Hearing. 

 
3. Release of Items from Closed Meeting: 

THAT Council reappoint the following member to the Penticton Public Library Board for a one-year term expiring 
December 2023:  David Folstad 
AND THAT Council appoint the following applicants to the Penticton Public Library Board for a one-year term 
expiring December 2023:  Debbra Mikaelsen and Sarah Sloan 
AND THAT Council appoint the following applicant to the Penticton Public Library Board for a two-year term 
expiring December 2024:  Derek McKeever 
AND FURTHER THAT Council appoint Councillor Gilbert to the Penticton Library Board. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.penticton.ca/


 
    
 

8. Staff Reports: 
 

Lloyd-Smith  8.1 Update on Public Safety Canada’s Funding Allocation for Penticton for 2023-2026                    14-26 
Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council receive into the record the report dated January 17, 2023 titled 
“Update on Public Safety Canada’s Funding Allocation for Penticton for 2023-2026”. 

 
Haddad  8.2 LocoLanding Adventure Golf Inc. (Inc. No. BC0622130) Lease Area Extension                        27-46 

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council approve the addition of the riverside washroom area (0.1 acre) 
to the existing Lease with  
Loco Landing Adventure Golf Inc. (Inc. No. BC0622130) located at 75 Riverside Drive; 
AND THAT the Lease includes the riverside washroom building demolition requirement at the end of 
the Lease term (approximate value of $20,000); 
AND THAT Council direct staff to place the disposition of City land and improvements advertisement 
pursuant to section 26 of the Community Charter; 
AND THAT Council direct the Mayor and Corporate Officer to execute the amended Lease agreements. 
 

Tanguay  8.3 Amendments to Development Procedure and Delegation Bylaw No. 2010-92                       47-51 
Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council direct staff to prepare necessary amendments to “Development 
Procedures and Delegation Bylaw No. 2010-92” to allow minor development variance permits to be 
delegated to staff for approval.  

 
Collyer  8.4 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2023-01                              52-90 

    Development Variance Permit PL2022-9455 
    Development Permit PL2022-9456 
    Re:  532 Forestbrook Drive 

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2023-01”, a 
bylaw to rezone Lot 2 District Lot 249 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 3966, located at 532 
Forestbrook Drive, from the R2 (Small Lot Residential) zone to the RD4 (Low Density Cluster Housing) 
zone to facilitate the development of a four-unit cluster housing development on the subject property; 
AND THAT Council forward “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2023-01” to the February 7 Public Hearing; 
AND THAT Council, subject to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2023-01”, consider 
“Development Variance Permit PL2022-9455” to vary the following sections of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 
to facilitate the proposed four-unit cluster housing development: 

• Section 10.7.2.3: to increase the maximum lot coverage from 40% to 41%, and 
• Section 10.7.2.7.a.i: to reduce the minimum interior side yard setbacks from 1.5m to 1.3m; 

AND THAT Council, subject to approval of “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9455”, approve 
“Development Permit PL2022-9456”, a permit to approve the form and character of the proposed 
four-unit cluster housing development. 

 
Collyer  8.5 Land Use Contract No. 3380 Discharge Bylaw No. 2023-02                            91-95 

    Re:  302 Eckhardt Avenue West 
Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council give first reading to “Land Use Contract No. 3380 Discharge 
Bylaw No. 2023-02”, a bylaw to discharge Land Use Contract Bylaw No. 3380 from the title of Lot 1 
District Lot 4 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale-Lytton) District Plan 2757 Except Plan 
H468, located at 302 Eckhardt Avenue West;   

AND THAT Council forward “Land Use Contract No. 3380 Discharge Bylaw No. 2023-02” to the February 
7, 2023 Public Hearing. 

 
9. Public Question Period and Recess  
 
10. Reconvene the Regular Council Meeting following the Public Hearing at 6:00 p.m. 
 



 
    
 

11. Staff Reports Continued 
 

Haddad  11.1 Resource Review Summary with Dr. Griffith                           96-120 
Delegation:  Dr. Curt T. Griffiths (via Zoom) 

Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council receive into the record the report dated January 17, 2023 titled 
“Resource Review Summary with Dr. Griffith”. 

 
12. Bylaws and Permits: 
 

Collison 12.1 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-55  121      Adopt 
  Development Variance Permit PL2022-9433  122-125   Approve 

  Re: 270 Riverside Drive 
 

Collyer 12.2 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-56   126-127     2nd/3rd  
  Re: 170 Arnott Place 
 
13. Notice of Motion 

 
13.1 From Councillor Gilbert:                                      128 

THAT Council direct staff to develop a quarterly Open House format on a separate date from regular 
council meetings, in the evening, and outside of the council chambers to allow community members to 
convene in order to discuss relevant concerns and/or specific subjects they have brought through Shape 
Your City with City Council and senior level staff; 
AND THAT Council direct staff to prepare an amendment to Council Procedure By-law No. 2018-35 and 
alter the order of proceedings and business section 23 (1) and move (a) Notice of Motion after (j) Staff 
Reports; and remove Council Round Table and Public Question Period. 

 
14. Business Arising 
 
15. Public Question Period 

 

 If you would like to ask Council a question with respect to items that are on the current agenda, please visit 
our website at www.penticton.ca to find the telephone number or Zoom link to ask your question before the 
conclusion of the meeting.  Please do not try to join the meeting early, you will not be let in to participate 
electronically until Council approaches the Public Question Period.  Watch the livestream on our website and 
prepare to call or join during the Business Arising.  

 
16. Council Round Table  
 
17. Adjournment 

http://www.penticton.ca/


 
 

Minutes 

 

 
 

 
 
 

      Regular Council Meeting 
held at City Hall, Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C.  
 

Tuesday, December 20, 2022 
at 1:00 p.m. 

   
   Present:  Mayor Bloomfield 

  Councillor Boultbee 
  Councillor Gilbert 
  Councillor Graham 
  Councillor Konanz 
  Councillor Miller 
  Councillor Watt  

 
 Staff:   Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 

     Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
     Angela Campbell, Director of Finance & Administration    
     Kristen Dixon, General Manager of Infrastructure  
     Anthony Haddad, General Manager, Community Services (via Zoom) 
     Blake Laven, Director of Development Services  
     Larry Watkinson, Fire Chief  
     Hayley Anderson, Legislative Assistant 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

The Mayor called the Regular Council Meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. 
      

2. Introduction of Late Items 
 

3. Adoption of Agenda 
  

386/2022 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting held on December 20, 2022 
as presented. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
4. Recess to Committee of the Whole  

 
387/2022 It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council recess to a Committee of the Whole meeting at 1:01 p.m. 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
 
 
 

- 1 -



    
Minutes of December 20, 2022 Regular Council Meeting  Page 2 of 7 
 
 

5. Reconvene the Regular Council Meeting  
 

Council reconvened the Regular Council Meeting at 1:17 p.m. 
 

 

6. Adoption of Minutes: 
 

  6.1 Minutes of the December 6, 2022 Regular Meeting of Council  
 

388/2022 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt the Regular Council Meeting minutes of December 6, 2022 as presented.  

 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

7. Consent Agenda: 
 

389/2022 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
 THAT Council approve the Consent Agenda: 
1. Minutes of the November 15, 2022 Committee of the Whole Meeting; and 
2. Minutes of the December 6, 2022 Public Hearing. 

 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

8. Staff Reports: 
 

8.1  Resource Review of the Penticton RCMP Detachment, Penticton Fire and Rescue and 
Penticton Bylaw Community Safety Officer Program 

 
390/2022  It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council receive into the record the report dated December 20, 2022 titled “Resource 
Review of the Penticton RCMP Detachment, Penticton Fire & Rescue & Penticton Bylaw 
Community Safety Officer Program” a report that contains the key findings and 
recommendations prepared by Dr. Curt T. Griffiths and Dr. Eli Sopow; 
AND THAT the Resource Review be used as guidance and considered by Council when setting 
their strategic priorities regarding community safety. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

8.2  Home Energy Loan Program Extension 
 

391/2022  It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council direct staff to extend the Home Energy Loan Program to December 31, 2024 while 
a comprehensive review of the program is undertaken. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

8.3  Snow and Ice Control Policy CP#2022-03 
 

392/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
 
THAT Council approve “Snow and Ice Control Policy CP#2022-03”, a policy that provides a 
balance between public safety, the City’s snow and ice removal resources, and the annual 
available budget. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

- 2 -



    
Minutes of December 20, 2022 Regular Council Meeting  Page 3 of 7 
 
 

8.4  Short Term Rental Benefit and Impact Study – Update and Engagement Plan 
 

393/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council receive into the record the report dated December 20, 2022 titled “Short-Term 
Rental Benefit and Impact Study – Update and Engagement Plan”.  

 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The Mayor recessed the meeting at 2:52 p.m. and the meeting reconvened at 3:02 p.m. 
 

8.5  Long Term Borrowing - Resolutions 
   

394/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council approve borrowing from the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia, 
as part of their 2023 spring borrowing session, three million and one hundred thousand 
dollars ($3,100,000) as authorized through “Advanced Waste Water Treatment Plant 
Expansion and Upgrades Loan Authorization Bylaw No. 2022-31” and that the Regional 
District of Okanagan-Similkameen be requested to consent to our borrowing over a twenty 
(20) year term and include the borrowing in a Security Issuing Bylaw. 

THAT Council approve borrowing from the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia, as 
part of their 2023 spring borrowing session, four million and seven hundred thousand dollars 
($4,700,000) as authorized through “Ridgedale Reservoir Expansion and Upgrades Loan 
Authorization Bylaw No. 2022-33” and that the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen be 
requested to consent to our borrowing over a twenty (20) year term and include the 
borrowing in a Security Issuing Bylaw. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

8.6  Updated Utility Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-53 
   

395/2022  It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt “Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-53”. 

CARRIED  
Councillor Gilbert, Opposed 

 
8.7  Kings Park: Soccer Clubhouse 

 
396/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council received into the record the report titled “Kings Park: Soccer Clubhouse” dated 
December 20, 2022; 
AND THAT Council authorize the expenditure of $150,000 from the Asset Emergency 
Management Fund for the purpose of demolishing the soccer clubhouse structure; 
AND THAT Council direct staff to bring forward a design and engagement budget for a new 
facility as part of the 2023 budget process. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

 

- 3 -



    
Minutes of December 20, 2022 Regular Council Meeting  Page 4 of 7 
 
 

8.8  Temporary Use Permit PL2022-9477 (Renewal) 
 Re: 647 Okanagan Avenue East 

 
397/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council approve “Temporary Use Permit PL2022-9477” for Lot 4 District Lot 3821S 
Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 15261, located at 647 Okanagan Avenue East, a 
permit to renew the previous temporary use permit to allow the use “indoor amusement, 
entertainment and recreation” on the subject property for an additional three-year period; 
AND THAT Council direct staff to issue the permit. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

8.9  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-56 
 Development Permit PL2022-9457 

 Re:  170 Arnott Place 
 

398/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-56”, a bylaw to 
rezone Lot 9 District Lot 116 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 25549, located at 170 
Arnott Place, from R1 (Large Lot Residential) to RD1 (Duplex Housing) with the following site-
specific provision: 
• A maximum of two dwelling units shall be permitted. 
AND THAT Council forward “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-56” to the January 17, 2023 
Public Hearing; 
AND THAT Council, subject to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-56”, 
approve “Development Permit PL2022-9457”, a permit to approve the form and character of 
a side-by-side duplex on the subject property. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

8.10  Development Variance Permit PL2022-9468 
 Re: 1256 Main Street 

 
399/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9468” for Lot 1 District Lot 250 
Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 8070, located at 1256 Main Street, a permit to vary the 
following sections of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01: 
• Section 4.8.4 to allow the placement of a metal storage container in the C1 zone. 
• Section 11.1.2.6 to reduce the interior side yard setback from 1.5 m to 0.45 m for the 

location of the metal storage container. 
AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9468”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 

9. Public Question Period 
 
 
 
 
 

- 4 -



    
Minutes of December 20, 2022 Regular Council Meeting  Page 5 of 7 
 
 

10. Recess into a Closed Meeting  
 

400/2022  It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council recess at 3:43 p.m. to a closed meeting of Council pursuant to the provisions of 
the Community Charter as follows:  Section 90 (1)  
(a) personal information about an identifiable individual who holds or is being considered 

for a position as an officer, employee or agent of the municipality or another position 
appointed by the municipality;  

(f) law enforcement, if the council considers that disclosure could reasonably be expected 
to harm the conduct of an investigation under or enforcement of an enactment; 

(j) information that is prohibited, or information that if it were presented in a document 
would be prohibited, from disclosure under section 21 of the Freedom of Information 
and Protection of Privacy Act;  

(k) negotiations and related discussions respecting the proposed provision of a municipal 
service that are at that preliminary stages and that, in the view of the council, could 
reasonably be expected to harm the interests of the municipality if they were held in 
public. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY   
 

11. Reconvene the Regular Council Meeting following the Public Hearing at 6:00 p.m. 
 

12. Bylaws and Permits 
 

12.1 General Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-52 
 

401/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt “Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-52”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

12.2  Traffic Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-54 
 

402/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt “Traffic Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-54”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
Councillor Konanz declared a Conflict of Interest as she is a neighbour and left the meeting at 7:21 p.m. 
 

12.3  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-55 
 Re: 270 Riverside Drive 

 
403/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council give second and third reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-55”. 
CARRIED 

Councillor Miller, Opposed 
Councillor Konanz returned to the meeting at 7:23 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 

- 5 -



    
Minutes of December 20, 2022 Regular Council Meeting  Page 6 of 7 
 
 

13. Notice of Motion 
 

13.1  Notice of Motion from Councillor Gilbert 
 

404/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council discuss the adoption of a Living Wage Policy (similar to the policy attached) 
during the 2023 budget deliberations; 
AND THAT Council direct staff to report the costs of calculating the Living Wage for City 
based on the calculations from the Living Wage for Families Campaign at the 2023 budget 
deliberations; 
AND THAT Council direct staff to report on the estimated costs to the City in adopting the 
Living Wage Policy at 2023 budget deliberations. 

CARRIED 
Councillors Boultbee, Konanz and Miller, Opposed 

 
13.2  Notice of Motion from Councillor Watt 

 
405/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council approve the immediate hiring of four additional firefighters;  
AND THAT the cost of three of the firefighters be drawn from the accumulated general surplus 
in 2023;  
AND THAT the cost of two of the firefighters be drawn from accumulated general surplus in 2024;  
AND THAT the cost of one of the firefighters be drawn from accumulated general surplus in 2025.  

CARRIED 
Councillors Konanz and Miller, Opposed 

 
13.3  Notice of Motion from Mayor Bloomfield 

 
406/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

WHEREAS the previous Council made a motion for the implementation of a ‘Car 40 Program’ 
which as endorsed by SILGA and UBCM; 
AND WHEREAS Interior Health has indicated potential support for such a program; 
AND WHEREAS the Ministry of Mental Health and Addictions has indicated potential support 
for such a program; 
AND WHEREAS the previous Council campaigned on a possible ‘made in Penticton’ option 
for the Car 40 Program; 
AND WHEREAS the RCMP and protective services have shown support for a ‘Car 40 Program’ 
in Penticton; 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council direct staff to provide options and costs for the 
implementation of its own ‘Car 40 Program’ during the 2023 budget deliberations for 
Council consideration as an alternative in the event that the Provincial Government fail to 
implement a plan of action in 2023.  

CARRIED 
Councillor Boultbee, Opposed 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- 6 -



    
Minutes of December 20, 2022 Regular Council Meeting  Page 7 of 7 
 
 

13.4  Notice of Motion from Mayor Bloomfield 
 

407/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
WHEREAS affordable housing was a prominent topic in the recent municipal election; 
AND WHEREAS most of the providers of social care in Penticton are expressing a need for 
affordable housing; 
AND WHEREAS the City owns undeveloped land in various locations; 
AND WHEREAS there is a recognized need for affordable housing throughout the Province; 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council direct staff to prepare a report focused on the 
possibility of the City providing land for workforce and affordable housing projects, potential 
locations and types of housing needs and approximate costs; 
AND THAT the report be brought to Council for their consideration at a future Council 
meeting. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
13.5  Notice of Motion from Councillor Konanz 

 
408/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT the remuneration rate paid to members of Council freeze and that the annual 
adjustment based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI) not be applied in 2023.  

CARRIED 
Councillors Graham and Watt, Opposed 

 
13.6  Notice of Motion from Councillor Boultbee 

 
409/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council pause the final section of the Lake to Lake Bike Route (Galt Avenue to South 
Beach Drive along South Main Street) until such time as a review of lessons learned and 
ridership information has been provided to Council.  

DEFEATED 
Mayor Bloomfield, Councillors Gilbert, Graham and Watt, Opposed 

 
14. Business Arising 

 
15. Public Question Period 

 
16. Council Round Table 
 
17. Adjournment  
 

410/2022   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adjourn the December 20, 2022 Regular meeting of Council at 8:43 p.m. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

Certified correct:      Confirmed: 
 

 
 
 

____________________________ ______________________________ 
Angie Collison  Julius Bloomfield 
Corporate Officer  Mayor  

- 7 -



 
 

Minutes 

 

 
 

 
 
 

Committee of the Whole 
held at City Hall, Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C.  
 

Tuesday, December 20, 2022 
Recessed from the Regular Council Meeting at 1:00 p.m. 

 
                           Present:    Mayor Bloomfield 

  Councillor Boultbee 
  Councillor Gilbert 
  Councillor Graham 
  Councillor Konanz 
  Councillor Miller 
  Councillor Watt  

 
 Staff:   Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 

     Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
     Angela Campbell, Director of Finance & Administration    
     Kristen Dixon, General Manager of Infrastructure  
     Anthony Haddad, General Manager, Community Services (via Zoom) 
     Blake Laven, Director of Development Services  
     Larry Watkinson, Fire Chief 
     Hayley Anderson, Legislative Assistant 

    
 

1. Call to order 
   

The Mayor called the Committee of the Whole meeting to order at 1:01 p.m. 
 

2. Adoption of Agenda 
 

 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the agenda for the Committee of the Whole meeting held on December 20, 2022 be 
adopted as presented.    

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
3. Delegations: 

 
3.1 100 More Homes Penticton 

 
Kyler Woodmass, 100 More Homes Strategy Coordinator, Community Impact & Investment, 
of 100 More Homes provided Council with a presentation on the activities of 100 More 
Homes Penticton and the partnership with the City and other community organizations.  

 
 
 

- 8 -



    
Minutes of December 20, 2022 Committee of the Whole   Page 2 of 2 
 

4. Adjourn to Regular Meeting 
 

 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adjourn the Committee of the Whole meeting held December 20, 2022 at 1:16 p.m. 
and reconvene the Regular Meeting of Council.  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
Certified correct:      Confirmed: 
 
 
 
____________________________ _______________________________ 
Angie Collison   Julius Bloomfield 
Corporate Officer  Mayor 

 
 
 
 
 

- 9 -



 
 

Minutes 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Public Hearing  
held electronically and at City Hall, Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C.  
 

Tuesday, December 20, 2022 
at 6:00 p.m. 

   
   Present:  Mayor Bloomfield 

  Councillor Boultbee 
  Councillor Gilbert 
  Councillor Graham 
  Councillor Konanz (left meeting at 6:13 p.m.) 
  Councillor Miller 
  Councillor Watt  

 
 Staff:   Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 

     Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
     Angela Campbell, Director of Finance & Administration    
     Kristen Dixon, General Manager of Infrastructure  
     Blake Laven, Director of Development Services  
     Hayley Anderson, Legislative Assistant 
      
          

1. Call to order 
 

Mayor Bloomfield called the public hearing to order at 6:12 p.m. for Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw No. 2022-55. Councillor Konanz declared a conflict of interest as a neighbor of the 
development and left the public hearing at 6:13 p.m. 

 
The Corporate Officer read the opening statement and introduced the purpose of the bylaw. 
She then explained that the public hearing was being held in-person and electronically to 
afford all persons who considered themselves affected by the proposed bylaw an opportunity 
to be heard before Council.  She further indicated that the public hearing was advertised 
pursuant to the Local Government Act. 

  
2. “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-55” (270 Riverside Drive) 

 
The purpose of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-55” is to amend Zoning Bylaw  
No. 2021-01 as follows:  

 
Zoning Bylaw Text Amendment to the following sections of the existing 
CD2 (Comprehensive Development (270 Riverside Drive)) zone on the 
subject property: 

  • Section 14.2.2: To add ‘Vacation Rental’ as a permitted use,  
  • Section 14.2.2: To add ‘Mobile Vending Unit’ as a permitted use, and 

- 10 -



 
Minutes of December 20, 2022  Public Hearing  Page 2 of 4 
    
  

 • Section 14.2.3.9: To change the minimum rear yard (Wylie Street)  
from 25m to 2.5m.  

 
 The applicant is proposing to construct a 6-storey, 234 unit strata apartment 

development consisting of 28 studio units, 117 one-bedroom units, and 89 
two-bedroom units. The development is proposed to be built in two phases, 
phase 1 with 96 units on the Wylie Street side and phase 2 with 138 units on 
the Riverside Drive side. 

 
The Corporate Officer advised that seven letters have been received since the printing of the 
agenda.   

 
DELEGATIONS 

 
Mayor Bloomfield asked the public for the first time if anyone wished to speak to the application. 
• Robert Camacho, Applicant on behalf of Kerkhoff, provided Council with a PowerPoint of 

proposal and highlights of project. 
• Dennis O’Gorman, Penticton resident, commented complimentary to Northern Gateway 

concept, emphasis on vacation rental struck as oddity, questioned why not made and 
designated as hotel, didn’t understand functional distinction with fitness and food 
services being provided. Questioned what the management apparatus that looks after 
vacation rentals will be, watching and living near this vicinity it has wild-west character, 
understands living out of residence and hotel, raises question about management on 
what will essentially be hotel, what will interaction be, vacation rentals have party 
dimension and noise, what management provisions will contractor have. Commented 
reference to short term rental regulations, would have liked to see presentation outline 
them, what outputs are, what dimensions of short term rental study are focus and how 
would apply. Was young once too, distinction of how vacation rentals will be marketed 
and management of tenant population. Commented dining pad, certain hipness to it, 
will come and go, fashions change, big complex, functionally a hotel, questioned only 
way to provide food services or just an ancillary. 

• Lori Goldman (via Zoom), Dauphin Ave, commented really gorgeous, thoughtful project, 
great redeeming qualities, attention to EV and bikes is great. Commented is a climate 
person, good ideas about trees and canopy, model shows little trees, won’t cool building 
or area, need adequately sized trees. Questioned about permeable hard scape, solar 
installation on roof, fossil fuel and heat pumps, need to be conscious of climate action 
plan. Not providing needed housing, going to be high end, rental not accessible to 
anyone who was in Ogopogo, rentals will promote investment buyers, reducing options 
for local citizens. Concerned about set back, not clear about difference, looks like it goes 
to walkway, crowding sidewalk on riverside. Asked application to address climate 
solutions. 

• Jordan Shade, Backstreet Boulevard, commented Staff presented vacation rentals 
permitted in any zone in City, what is needed is housing, love development and design 
but need to address housing, main focus, only against vacation rentals otherwise happy 
to support. 

• Ben Edison, speak to nature of vacation rental, have operated a vacation rental for 10-
years in Penticton, finds months of June, July, August and September are in demand, 
during off season continues to keep vacation rental open for short-term out-of-town 
workers for construction purposes. Commented vacation rentals geared towards tourist 
but also creates off-season rentals considered a bonus. Commented pays 2% MRDT tax 
to city, not opposed to paying more, goes to maintaining property. 

• Lorraine Stephanson, Penticton resident, commented at recent public hearing 

- 11 -



 
Minutes of December 20, 2022  Public Hearing  Page 3 of 4 
    
  

mentioned to past council about ad in real estate guide every week stating for buyers 
wanting to purchase up to 800k for vacation rentals, found it disturbing, we all want 
housing for local workers. At Council meeting this was presented, was said 100% could 
be vacation rentals, tonight was said 25% due to insurance regulations. Questioned who 
is going to decide if a buyer can use the unit for vacation rental, will it be decided on 
units in advance or lottery, people buy for different reasons. Vacation rental component 
encourages external speculation, takes away from long-term housing for local workers, 
hard to enforce vacation rentals. Commented with David Eby’s new regulations 
regarding strata no longer allowed to screen tenants, going to be difficult. Commented 
great project, like look of building, improvement from past proposal, approve without 
vacation rental amendment. 

• Brigid Kemp (via Zoom), Warren Avenue West, questions from what Developer is saying, 
using words that don’t apply to proposed development, talking about market homes, 
much needed housing options, wonderful amenities, questioned if amenities will be 
open to public, can we use pool, outdoor bbq, food truck on their property. Commented 
remember about people who call Penticton home. Commented Hwy 97 major highway, 
vacation rentals increase residence in complex, questioned how Highway 97 and 
Riverside will be safer from development. 

• Laurie Lancaster, realtor worked on Riverside previous project, in favour of project, need 
for one-bedroom units, previous project gives many people the option for younger 
professionals in north end, can support vacation rentals properly with limits to avoid 
parties, need to development, work together for guidelines and structure. 

 
Mayor Bloomfield asked the public for the second time if anyone wished to speak to the 
application. 
• Scott Proudfoot (Via Zoom), speaking for architect design team, compliments Penticton, 

set standard for north gateway. South side trail building, going above and beyond trail 
standard, animate plaza area created in centre, make a welcoming place for people to 
spend time. On third level private amenity deck for residents, pool and bbq area, safe 
place for children with supervision form surrounding apartments. Proud to bring project 
to Penticton, available to answer questions about building. 

 
Mayor Bloomfield asked the public for the third and final time if anyone wished to speak to 
the application. 
• Robert Camacho, Applicant, invited Shane Styles, Marketing Agent, very familiar with 

short-term rentals to address concerns.  
• Shane Styles, Marketing Agent, Epic Real Estate Solutions, commented Penticton 

favourite market, most potential for growth, particularly for people from lower mainland, 
find opportunity for businesses and affordability for housing. Done research in Penticton, 
all buyers for project of this size not from this market, need to make attractive to other 
markets to come here by allowing short-term rentals capabilities expands into other 
market, important part of sales, making project reality. Commented project called the 
Shores in Kelowna, purpose built building with short-term rentals, managed as multi-
family building, short term rentals during peak season, mid and long-term rentals, 6-8 
months, building always full, satisfies a market demand that appeals to tourists and 
people looking for mid to long term option. 

• Councillor Miller, stated 348,000 hotel room nights this year, 472,000 by 2030, 
questioned source. 

• Robert Camacho, Applicant, responded City of Penticton Colliers report. Responded 
short tem rental rules, putting in rules as developer for strata to follow, comparable to 
multi-family short-term rental rules, limits per unit, hours of activity, partially managed 
by remaining home owners. Responded amenities at podium level not available, food 

- 12 -



 
Minutes of December 20, 2022  Public Hearing  Page 4 of 4 
    
  

truck yes, offering space for food trucks, different dining opportunity based on demand.  
• Scott Proudfoot (via Zoom), responded rendering show trees that will be seen in short-

term, next five years, look forward to them growing big. Big canopy at top of building, 
great for shading on south side. Responded building not all electric, 100% of units will 
have heat pumps. Responded setback on Wylie Street face, to right new townhomes, 
doubled setback of neighbor. Responded about safety improvements, applicant to work 
with Ministry of Transportation to upgrade intersection before building permit issued to 
make intersection safer. Responded seeing more demand for solar, it’s a cost thing, in a 
for-sale market doesn’t much in BC, BC Hydro encourages, not considered as part of this 
project. 

• Lorraine Stephanson, Penticton resident, questioned who decides which 25% maximum 
vacation rentals, who decides which are vacation rentals. 

• Robert Camacho, Applicant, responded set through strata rules, not uncommon for long-
term rentals, may be determined from sales point-of-view, waiting lists for other 
interested home owners afterwards. 

• Mayor Bloomfield, commented would like to hear about company experience in 
development. 

• Robert Camacho, Applicant, responded working with Kerkhoff last six years in Okanagan, 
want to be treated like every other developer, we produce projects that we believe can 
be built and sold. In Okanagan have over 600 doors in construction. Delivered 427 units 
to market in Kelowna, homeowners very happy. 

• Councillor Miller, asked about Strata rules, decision of builder or developer, how does it 
work.  

• Robert Camacho, Applicant, responded developer sets Strata rules, once formed Strata 
Council has right to make changes. Responded rules don’t change in first year, 
regulations after certain percentage of completions, needs to have formalized meeting 
to start Strata, developer relinquishes control. 

• Councillor Gilbert, asked if didn’t have vacation rentals, would project get off ground. 
• Robert Camacho, Applicant, responded we can firmly say we need to have same playing 

field as everyone else, want to offer what everyone is looking for and cast widest net. 
• Councillor Watt, asked applicant to confirm it is not being marketed as short-term rental 

facility. 
• Robert Camacho, Applicant, responded not marketing as short-term rental property, 

offering well designed home, want to be allowed to say yes to those looking for short-
term rental. 

 
The public hearing for “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-55” was terminated at 7:15 p.m. 
and no new information can be received on this matter. 

 
 

Certified correct:      Confirmed: 
 
 

_____________________  ________________________ 
Angie Collison   Julius Bloomfield 
Corporate Officer  Mayor 

- 13 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: January 17, 2023      File No: 1855-03 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Jamie Lloyd-Smith, Interim Social Development Specialist and Sarah Desrosiers, Social 
 Development Coordinator 
 
Subject:    Update on Public Safety Canada’s Funding Allocation for Penticton for 2023-2026  

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council receive into the record the report dated January 17, 2023 titled “Update on Public Safety 
Canada’s Funding Allocation for Penticton for 2023-2026”. 

Background 

On March 16, 2022, Public Safety Canada announced that it would be investing over $250 million towards 
community-based prevention and intervention strategies to address community safety across Canada 
though the Building Safer Communities Fund (BSCF). Under this program Penticton is eligible to receive over 
$1 million dollars to spend over the next three years. The Federal Government is allowing municipalities to 
redistribute this funding to organizations delivering programs aimed at engaging youth (12-24) in trauma 
recovery, mentoring, counselling, skills development and recreational opportunities. They encourage these 
organizations to incorporate evidence-based crime prevention models wherever possible. 

As a result of this allocated funding, staff brought forward a request to Council in June 2022 that local not-
for-profit organizations and other relevant community partners collaborate on the three-year investment 
plan. As per Council’s direction, the City hired a term project coordinator to research the needs of the 
community and to work collaboratively with partners to ascertain the best allocation of eligible funding 
from April 2022-April 2026 (Council Resolution 227/2022). In addition to understanding local needs with 
external partners, staff are also reviewing any internal options for funding allocations.  

Community Research 

From Council’s direction, staff conducted research to understand the need and opportunity in the 
community, engaging with external and internal partners, exploring community reports and data, 
discussing with other local governments that received allocations from Public Safety Canada, and mapping 
out youth-serving organizations and existing programs.  

Staff compiled learnings into a Community Research Report (See Appendix A) which identified the 
community needs, assets, strengths and solutions facing at-risk youth in Penticton. The research is not an 

- 14 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 3 

exhaustive picture of youth needs in Penticton, but captures a mix of qualitative and quantitative measures 
to understand the greatest program needs over the next three years.  

Over twenty-six local organizations were surveyed. They were examined for the ages they serve, what 
programs they have available, the cost of each program, the referral process to participate in each program 
and which of the identified priority areas they serve. Each program was then categorized into a priority area 
to understand how many programs existed in each area. As a result of the community research and 
conversations, a set of nine priority areas for at-risk youth were identified: 

• Safe housing supports; 
• Mental health; 
• Substance use; 
• Family and home life supports; 
• Free community activities and opportunities;  

• School and education; 
• Life skills; 
• Food security; 
• Youth employment

 

Of these nine areas, four emerged as being the most needed in Penticton for youth, based on engagements: 
safe housing supports, mental health, substance use, and family and home life supports.  

In addition to consultations, youth crime statistics provided by the local RCMP detachment revealing 
relatively low youth crime rates suggest that a focus on prevention over intervention services will contribute 
to positive social development and community safety. Further engagements with community partners in 
Quarter 1 will drive the final program(s) and investment plan by consensus (Figure 1). These engagements 
will have staff work directly with community partners to select partner(s) and program(s) to receive funds 
that are evidence-based and aligned with community research findings.  

 

(When I first suggested this update, it was with the intent that staff would outline the process for distributing 
the funds?) 

Financial implication 

Public Safety Canada and the City of Penticton signed a contribution agreement on October 12, 2022 to hire 
a term project coordinator. The City of Penticton will be eligible to receive up to $1 million dollars over the 
next three years, contingent on the contribution agreement being signed after March 31, 2023 which would 
see funding redistributed to partner(s) to deliver youth crime prevention programs. This is the breakdown of 
eligible funds: 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 (April 1st 2023 to March 31st 2024)  $409,149.38 
Fiscal Year 2024/2025 (April 1st 2024 to March 31st 2025) $409,149.38 
Fiscal Year 2025/2026 (April 1st 2025 to March 31st 2026) $233,799.65 

 

No matching contribution from the municipality is required.  All project associated costs are funded through 
the grant and will be primarily redistributed to eligible not-for-profit organizations. Partners who are eligible 
for funding are requirement to create a sustainability plan for any program(s) and/or service(s) they will 
deliver. Some staff time is required to support partners in the development of a sustainability plan. 

- 15 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 3 

Next steps 

The BCFS program and funding agreement require submission of the three year plan by the end of March 
2023. Staff are well positioned to meet this requirement. The following diagram shows the next steps of the 
program:    

 

Analysis 

Penticton was allocated funds through the BCFS program by Public Safety Canada. Following Council 
direction staff have been working with various partners to prepare a three year plan to utilize the funds in 
the best interests of the community within the funding parameters. The three year plan will involve a mix of 
youth focused crime prevention program(s), primarily delivered through local not-for-profit agencies. 
Participation in the program is one of many other community safety initiatives currently underway in the 
community, but the program most focused on youth crime prevention.  

Staff are recommending that Council receive this report for information.  

Attachments 

Attachment A – Community Research Report 

Alternate recommendations 

THAT Council direct staff to bring back additional information.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Jamie Lloyd-Smith      Sarah Desrosiers 
Interim Social Development Specialist   Social Development Coordinator 

  

Concurrence: 

 

 

 

Director of Development 
Services  

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

BL 
 

DvD 
 

- 16 -



- 17 -



                                                           

 

- 18 -



- 19 -



- 20 -



                                                           

- 21 -



                                                           

- 22 -

https://www.publicsafety.gc.ca/cnt/rsrcs/pblctns/fctrs-dlnqnc/index-
https://www.publicsafety.gc.ca/cnt/rsrcs/pblctns/fctrs-dlnqnc/index-


- 23 -



                                                           

- 24 -



- 25 -



 

- 26 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   
 

 

 

Date: January 17, 2023              File No: 2380-20 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Sheri Raposo, Land Administrator 
Subject: Loco Landing Adventure Golf Inc. (Inc. NO. BC0622130) Lease Area Extension  

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council approve the addition of the riverside washroom area (0.1 acre) to the existing Lease with  
Loco Landing Adventure Golf Inc. (Inc. No. BC0622130) located at 75 Riverside Drive; 

AND THAT the Lease includes the riverside washroom building demolition requirement at the end of the 
Lease term (approximate value of $20,000); 

AND THAT Council direct staff to place the disposition of City land and improvements advertisement 
pursuant to section 26 of the Community Charter; 

AND THAT Council direct the Mayor and Corporate Officer to execute the amended Lease agreements. 

Executive Summary 

Loco Landing is seeking to extend their Lease area to include the riverside washrooms, which were scheduled 
to be demolished following the recent installation of new washrooms in the area. Loco Landing will assume 
all responsibility and costs for maintaining and operating the washroom facility and be responsible for 
demolishing the building at the end of their lease term.  As this is park land, the proposal would typically be 
reviewed by the City’s Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee, however considering the minimal park land 
impact and the committee not currently being in place, this report recommends Council support the proposal 
without review by the committee.    

Background 

In 1996 the City held a referendum and received approval from the electorate to Lease approximately 7.4 Acres 
of Riverside Park property for commercial recreation activities, for a period of 5 – 20 years.   On February 5, 
2001 Council then endorsed a proposal from Loco Landing for expansion and entered into a 20-year 
agreement to support the business owner’s investment into the lands.  In September 2008 an amendment of 
the Lease was requested and approved by Council to include a larger Leased area and to amend the term from 
January 1, 2009 for a further 20-year term. The original Lease area did not include the washroom facilities to 
ensure public access to the washrooms. 

- 27 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 7 

On May 22, 2018 Loco Landing shared their future plans with Council of reinvesting approximately $2 million 
in their facility over the next 12 years, seeking a further extension to their existing Lease.  Council approved 
the Lease renewal option for an additional 10 years expiring December 31, 2039, which also has an additional 
10-year option to renew clause. 

There are two Lease agreements that apply to these lands and should Council support the proposal, the 
agreements will be updated to reflect the additional lands and the roles and responsibilities of each party.   

Proposed New Lease Area  

Loco Landing is requesting to expand their current Lease area, to include the existing Riverside Park 
washroom facility located at 75 Riverside Drive and the land surrounding the facility, as shown in Attachment 
A.  The purpose of providing additional washrooms is to better serve their customers within the boundary of 
the facility.  The washroom facility was closed at the end of 2022 and replaced with a new accessible washroom 
facility located closer to Riverside Drive.  The intention was to demolish the existing structure; however, with 
the request received from Loco Landing to retain the existing facility as part of their operations, staff have put 
the demolition on hold subject to Council’s decision. 

There are some City utilities, including drainage, irrigation and electrical infrastructure located within the area 
and should Council support the proposal, staff would work with the proponent to separate out as required.  
Costs associated with utility use for the operations of the washroom would be the responsibility of Loco 
Landing as well and they would add this to their utility bills. 

Park Land Protection and Use Policy 

As this land is on City park land, the Park Land Protection and Use Policy (Attachment C) is applicable, which 
was developed to create a process for parks related decisions, including the involvement of the Parks and 
Recreation Advisory Committee. 

While the policy is silent on an extension to an existing Lease and any procedure that may need to be followed, 
the purpose and guiding principles of the policy is clear around the involvement of the Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Committee in the decision making process.   

Typically, staff would recommend that Council forward the proposal to the Committee, however the 
committee is not yet in place for this Council term. The goal of the policy is to protect public ownership of 
park land with regards to future decisions, however, in this situation the area of land is relatively small and 
uniquely shaped that would not provide any significant benefit for the public.  Therefore, staff are 
recommending Council support the proposal without comment from the committee.   

If directed by Council to receive comment by the committee instead, staff will present a report to the Parks 
and Recreation Advisory Committee at their first available meeting when a new committee structure is 
formed, and provide the recommendation back to Council with feedback from the Committee and any public 
consultation that may be deemed necessary.  Considering that the Committee still needs to be formed, staff 
estimate that it may not be until later March or early April that a meeting could take place, which would bring 
the final report back to Council in May 2023. 

- 28 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 7 

Loco Landing would like to see this change take place so that they can prepare for opening towards the end 
of April or early May 2023, which would involve removal of their existing fence, installation of a new fence, 
and any restoration to the existing washroom required to satisfy the needs of their operations. 

Financial implication 

The City identified these washrooms as needing to be upgraded and replaced.   The cost to demolish these 
washrooms is approximately $15,000 - $20,000.   Should the Lease not be amended, the City would be 
responsible for these costs and the work would be undertaken in the early part of 2023.  New washrooms have 
already been placed in the area.  

Analysis 

Considering the lands are located on dedicated park land, staff obtained legal advice with regards to 
amending the existing Lease agreements to include the additional property and washrooms, and important 
to this process it was important to ensure that there were no unreasonable costs to the city or any assistance 
to business, which is restricted under the Community Charter. Based on legal advice received, staff have had 
discussions with Loco Landing, and Loco Landing have agreed at their cost to maintain the Riverside Park 
washroom during the remaining term of their Lease agreements, including any upgrades required, with the 
requirement to demolish the washroom at their cost, prior to the end of the term of the Lease agreements.   In 
return for not paying any Lease fee for the use of the new Leased area, the City would not have to pay for the 
demolition and site remediation costs of the facility.  The addition to the small sliver of land to the existing 
lease area which was approved through the 1996 referendum, would also not require public assent, given the 
minor nature of the addition.   

The existing washrooms are located on an area of land directly adjacent to the existing Loco Landing lease 
area and directly west of the existing public pathway.  The area of land is approximately 0.1 acres (4,300 square 
feet) and is irregularly shaped, restricting its future benefit and use for the public, should the washrooms be 
removed and the City take over maintenance of the lands. 

In addition to the age of the facility, one of the other reasons for its proposed demolition was the safety 
concerns resulting from use behind the washroom and between the existing Loco Landing fence.  The lack of 
visibility behind the washrooms resulted in drug use and other inappropriate activities taking place.  As part 
of their proposal, Loco Landing would remove the existing fence and replace it around the new Lease area, 
incorporating the washrooms within their operations, eliminating public safety concerns from this area. 

Considering the adjacency of the relatively small area of land that would be provided to Loco Landing, staff 
are recommending that the proposal be supported. 

Alternate Recommendations  

Should Council wish to forward the proposal to the Committee for review and comment, staff have provided 
the following alternate resolution for Council’s consideration: 

THAT Council refer the amendment to the existing Lease agreement and the future Lease agreement 
to Loco Landing for the requested area extension including the washrooms to the Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Committee for their review and recommendation.  

- 29 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 7 

Staff would then bring the proposal to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee once it is reinstated and 
then bring a report back to Council with comments and recommendations from the committee, once the 
committee is established for 2023. 

Council could also not support this proposal, which would result in the City moving forward with the 
demolition of the existing washroom facility and restoration of the existing lands, which would likely be in the 
form of sod and low maintenance landscaping.  Given the adjacency to the Local landing fence and public 
pathway, the addition of landscaping or public amenities would be limited in this 0.1acre piece of land.  Staff 
would not recommend this alternative. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Existing and Proposed Lease Area 

Attachment B – Loco Landing Request  

Attachment C – Park Land Protection and Use Policy 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Sheri Raposo 

Land Administrator  
 

Approvals 

GM 
Community 

Services 

GM of 
Infrastructure 

Director of Finance 
and Administration 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

AH 
KD AMC DvD 

 

 

  

- 30 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 7 

Attachment A – Existing and Proposed Lease Area 

 

 

 

- 31 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 7 

Attachment B – Loco Landing Request 

 

 

- 32 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 7 

Attachment C – Park Land Protection and Use Policy 

https://www.penticton.ca/sites/default/files/docs/city-hall/council-
policies/Park%20Land%20Protection%20and%20Use%20Policy.pdf  

 

- 33 -

https://www.penticton.ca/sites/default/files/docs/city-hall/council-policies/Park%20Land%20Protection%20and%20Use%20Policy.pdf
https://www.penticton.ca/sites/default/files/docs/city-hall/council-policies/Park%20Land%20Protection%20and%20Use%20Policy.pdf


- 34 -



- 35 -



- 36 -



- 37 -



- 38 -



- 39 -



- 40 -



- 41 -



- 42 -



- 43 -



- 44 -



- 45 -



- 46 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: January 17, 2023      File No: RMS\3700-4699 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Audrey Tanguay, Planning and Licensing Manager 
Subject: Amendments to Development Procedure and Delegation Bylaw No. 2010-92   
 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council direct staff to prepare necessary amendments to “Development Procedures and Delegation 
Bylaw No. 2010-92” to allow minor development variance permits to be delegated to staff for approval.  

Background 

Changes to provincial rules now allow for the delegating of ‘minor’ development variance permits (DVPs) to 
designated staff. The Municipal Affairs Statutes Amendment Act (No. 2), 2021, S.B.C. 2021, c. 30, which was 
given Royal Assent in November 2021, amended several pieces of provincial legislation, including the Local 
Government Act (LGA). The intent of the new legislation was to provide local governments with more power 
to simplify and speed up the development approval process, and in turn, get the homes people need built 
faster.  

Development Variance Permits are permits that allow for Council, as the approving authority, to vary or 
otherwise support a change to a bylaw regulation to support a specific development proposal. The 
amendments to the Local Government Act (LGA) facilitate local governments to delegate certain DVP 
decisions to staff, if the proposed variance is minor and pertains to matters specified in legislation, including:  

• Zoning bylaws respecting siting, size and dimensions of buildings, structures and permitted uses;  
• Off-street parking and loading space requirements and   
• Screening and landscaping to mask or separate uses or to preserve, protect, restore and enhance 

natural environment  
• Sign regulations  

 
Council is required to set the conditions and criteria that the delegated staff need to consider in their 
consideration of the permit. This is similar to other types of permits that are delegated to staff – such as certain 
types of development permits. The legislation also includes a provision whereby if the applicant is not satisfied 
with the decision of the delegated staff, that Council may then consider the permit.  
 

 

- 47 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 5 

The City process on average 40 DVPs per year. Currently City Council has to approve every permit, no matter 
how minor the proposal. See Attachment A for a list of DVPs considered by Council over the past 3 years, 
showing 120 files in total. Of the 120 files, 14 were cancelled before coming to Council (11 %), 14 are currently 
active (11%), 8 were denied by Council (6%) and the remainder 84 were approved by Council (70%).  

A number of local governments including the District of Summerland and the RDOS locally, as well as several 
municipalities in the Lower Mainland, have brought forward amendments to their delegation bylaws 
following the change in the legislation. Staff have reviewed the past few years of development variance permit 
applications and see value in Penticton making similar changes to our processes to support the delegation of 
certain types of DVP applications.  
 
In addition to the changes to the delegation portion of the Bylaw, should Council direct staff to move ahead 
with the changes, staff will also review other aspects of the bylaw to modernize the numbering, change 
references to historic bylaws and provincial regulation and also look for other opportunities to modernize the 
document.  
 
Financial implication 

As these amendments are minor in scope, most of the work will be done with in-house staff. Legal review of 
the completed bylaw will be required. Staff, however, do not anticipate costs to exceed $2,000, which will be 
covered by existing policy review budgets.  

Timeline 

Should Council support the proposed amendments, staff will begin the work to update the bylaw and go 
through the legal review process, bringing back the bylaw for Council’s consideration for first reading 
sometime in Q2 2023. Given the relatively minor scope of the works, staff are not planning any engagement 
other than informing the development community and other stakeholders of the changes in the process.    

Analysis 

The intent of allowing local government authority to delegate minor variances was intended to increase 
efficiency of development processes. Of the 92 variance applications considered by Council over the past 3 
years, staff estimate that 72 of those could have met the criteria to be delegated to staff, saving significant 
amounts of time for the applicants and Council. The average processing time for a DVP’s is 8 weeks. Removing 
the Council process for minor DVPs would significantly speed up the time between when an application was 
made and permit decision.   

In summary, the delegation of development variance permits would expedite and streamline the process of 
DVP approval and issuance. Any local government wishing to delegate this power must do so by way of a 
bylaw.  

Should Council supports this approach, Staff will bring back amendments to the Development Procedure 
and Delegation Bylaw delegating to staff the authority to issue DVPs for “minor” variances, establishing the 
criteria for determining whether a proposed variance is “minor” and establishing guidelines the delegate 
must consider in deciding whether to issue a DVP. Staff will also be updating other sections of the bylaw to 
ensure the bylaw includes a more modern structure and other housekeeping items.   

- 48 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 5 

 

Alternate recommendations 

If Council feels that they should remain the approving authority for all Development Variance Permits, no 
changes would be brought forward to the bylaw.  

Attachments 

Attachment A: List of Development Variance Permit applications submitted to the City 2019-2022  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Audrey Tanguay 
Planning and Licensing Manager 

 

Concurrence  

General 
Manager/ 
Director 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

BL 
DvD 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 49 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 5 

 

 

Attachment A 

Type of permit  
Lone application or as 
part of another project 

Subject  Outcome  

MINOR DVP- Front Yard Setback (6.0m to 5.4m) CANCELLED 
MAJOR/DP DVP – Setbacks (rear 6.0m to 0.5m),Building Height (10.5m to 12.87m) DENIED 
MINOR DVP - Freestanding Sign (15m2 to 24m2 in size) APPROVED 
MINOR DVP- Vary SD&D Bylaw (Road standards) DENIED 
MINOR DVP - Razor Wire Fencing  APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Size of Secondary Suite  APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Pkg Stall Count and Size (increase the number of small car spaces) APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Reduce Sideyard Setbacks (3.0m to 1.5m) APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Rear Yard Setback (6.0m to 2.1m) CANCELLED 
MINOR DVP - Setback reduction for a deck  APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Frontyard Setback (4.5m to 3.6m) to support a house relocation  APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Rear Setback (6.0m to 1.9m)  APPROVED 
MAJOR DVP - Rearyard Setback, Site Coverage, Sec Suite Size APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Rearyard Setback (6.0m to 4.5m) APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Retaining Wall Height (1.2m to 1.6m) APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Frontyard Setback & Lot Coverage  RETIRED 
MINOR DVP - Vary K Value of a road  APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Front Yard Setback (6.0m to 3.3m) APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Fence Height (1.2m to 1.8m) APPROVED 
MAJOR DVP - Setbacks, Pkg, Lot Area/Coverage APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Side Yard and Rear Yard Setbacks CANCELLED 
MINOR DVP - Driveway and Side Yard Setback (Porch) APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Parking in Front Yard  DENIED 
MINOR DVP - Rear Yard (6.0m to 5.2m)  CANCELLED 
MINOR DVP -  Vary Max Floor Area of All Accessory Buildings (75m2 to 160m2) APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Front Yard Setback (6.0m to 3.8m) APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Floor area  APPROVED 
MINOR DVP – Setback (reduce to 0.0 for industrial building) APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Front Yard Variance (4.5m to 1.8m) APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Projections, Roof Overhang and Landscape Buffer CANCELLED 
MINOR DVP - Retaining Wall (1.2m to 3.35m) APPROVED 
MAJOR DVP - Side Setback, Rear Setback DENIED 
MINOR DVP - Parking and Site Coverage APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Height of Building CANCELLED 
MINOR DVP - Retaining Wall Height (1.2m to 3.6m) APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Carriage House Floor Area  APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Rear Yard Setback and Floor Area of Secondary Suite APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Sideyard Setback CANCELLED 
MINOR DVP - Lot width DENIED 

MAJOR 
DVP - DVP PL2018-8240 Expired - Re-Application Plus An Additional 
Variance APPROVED 

MINOR DVP - Size of Accessory Building APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Interior Side Yard, Front Yard Setback APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Interior Side Yard and Rear Yard Setbacks APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Front Setback APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Driveways access off of front DENIED 
MINOR DVP - Rear Yard Setback APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Side Yard Setbacks APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Setback APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Side and Rear Setbacks CANCELLED 
MINOR DVP - Rear Yard Setback APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Permit 3 Metal Storage Containers and Secondary Suite Size APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Interior Sideyard and Exterior Sideyard APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Rear yard/Side yard Setbacks DENIED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Retaining Wall Height and Setback APPROVED 

- 50 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 5 

MINOR DVP - Lot Widths APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Building Height RETIRED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Parking Stall Width APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Perimeter Fence Height APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Secondary Suite Floor Area & Deck Projection APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Lot Coverage and Set Backs APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Lot Widths APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Retaining Wall Height APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Front Yard Setback APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Retaining Wall Height APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Retaining Wall Height APPROVED 
MAJOR/DP DVP - Side Yard Setbacks APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Exterior Side Yard APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - To Allow Vehicular Access from the Street APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Building Footprint DENIED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Lot Coverage APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Stairwell in Side Yard CANCELLED 
MINOR DVP - Side Yard Setback for Deck Awning APPROVED 
MAJOR/DP DVP - Front Yard Setback, Bldg Height, Visitor Parking APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Setback APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Setbacks CANCELLED 
MINOR DVP - Front Yard Setback CANCELLED 
MINOR DVP - Vary Height of Carriage House to 2 Storeys APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Floor Area for Major Home Occupation APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Hard Surface CANCELLED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Lot Coverage APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Height of Carriage House APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Retaining Wall Height and Location APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Carriage House Footprint and Height APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Rear Yard and Parcel Coverage APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Rear Yard and Interior Side Yard APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Setbacks ACTIVE 
MINOR DVP - Setback APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Rear Setback and Parcel Coverage ACTIVE 
MINOR/DP DVP - Footprint APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Carriage House Setbacks APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Building Height ON HOLD 
MINOR DVP - Side Yard Setback APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Site Coverage CANCELLED 
MINOR DVP - Side Yard Setback APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Interior Side Yard APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Setbacks ACTIVE 
MINOR/DP DVP - Size & Location of the Carriage House APPROVED 
MAJOR/DP DVP - Lot Coverage, Height, Front Access ACTIVE 
MINOR/DP DVP - Building Height & Small Parking Spaces APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Bicycle Parking ACTIVE 
MINOR DVP - Fence Height in Front Yard CANCELLED 
MINOR DVP - Front Yard Setback APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Exterior Side Yard APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Interior Side Yard Setback APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Front Yard Setback APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Sign Bylaw ACTIVE 
MINOR DVP - Sign Bylaw ACTIVE 
MINOR DVP - To allow Vehicle Access From the Front APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Front Yard Setback APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Outdoor Service Area APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Rear Yard Setback APPROVED 
MAJOR/DP DVP - Site Coverage, Projection, Parking ACTIVE 
MINOR DVP - Rear and Side Yard Setbacks APPROVED 
MINOR DVP - Size of Secondary Suite APPROVED 
MINOR/DP DVP - Sideyard Setback ACTIVE 
MINOR DVP - Metal Container in C1 Zone ACTIVE 
MINOR DVP - Retaining Wall Height ACTIVE 
MINOR/DP DVP - Hardsurfacing ACTIVE 

 

- 51 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: January 17, 2023     File No:    RMS/532 Forestbrook Dr 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Steven Collyer, Planner II 
Address: 532 Forestbrook Drive  
 
Subject: Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2023-01 
 Development Variance Permit PL2022-9455 
 Development Permit PL2022-9456 

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2023-01”, a bylaw to rezone Lot 2 District 
Lot 249 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 3966, located at 532 Forestbrook Drive, from the R2 (Small 
Lot Residential) zone to the RD4 (Low Density Cluster Housing) zone to facilitate the development of a four-
unit cluster housing development on the subject property; 

AND THAT Council forward “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2023-01” to the February 7 Public Hearing; 

AND THAT Council, subject to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2023-01”, consider “Development 
Variance Permit PL2022-9455” to vary the following sections of Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 to facilitate the 
proposed four-unit cluster housing development: 

• Section 10.7.2.3: to increase the maximum lot coverage from 40% to 41%, and 
• Section 10.7.2.7.a.i: to reduce the minimum interior side yard setbacks from 1.5m to 1.3m; 

AND THAT Council, subject to approval of “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9455”, approve 
“Development Permit PL2022-9456”, a permit to approve the form and character of the proposed four-unit 
cluster housing development. 

Proposal 

The applicant is proposing to construct a four-unit cluster housing 
development on the subject property consisting of two side-by-side 
duplexes, one facing the street and the other facing the lane (Figure 1). 
The proposal would provide four 3-bedroom units on the property, with 
each unit having its own dedicated yard and all of the required vehicle 
parking provided from the rear lane. Figure 1 - Rendering of proposed 

development (view from Forestbrook Dr) 

- 52 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 12 

To facilitate the proposed development, the applicant has requested that the property be rezoned from the 
R2 (Small Lot Residential) zone to the RD4 (Low Density Cluster Housing) zone, and has requested two 
variances to increase the maximum lot coverage from 40% to 41% and to reduce the side yard setbacks from 
1.5m to 1.3m. The applicant has also submitted a Development Permit application for approval of the form 
and character of this proposed infill development. 

Background 

The subject property is located on the south side of 
Forestbrook Drive, west of Government Street, in a 
primarily residential neighbourhood (Figure 2). 
Penticton Secondary School and KVR Middle School are 
both located further west along the street. The property 
is within walking distance of the IGA grocery store on 
Government Street and the KVR trail. The property 
contains a single detached dwelling, which is proposed 
to be demolished. The property is currently zoned R2 
(Small Lot Residential) by the Zoning Bylaw and is 
designated ‘Infill Residential’ in the OCP (Figure 3). 

The primary housing form on the block is single 
detached dwellings. There are existing infill 
developments on this block of Forestbrook Drive, which 
include an 8-unit cluster townhouse development 
completed in 2016 at 511 Forestbrook Drive, and a 4-
unit cluster housing development completed in 2022 at 
533 Forestbrook Drive. 565 Forestbrook Drive across the 
street was also recently approved for a 4-unit cluster 
housing development by Council in December 2022, with construction currently underway. 

Climate Impact 

Council adopted the Community Climate Action Plan (CCAP) in 2021. The proposed development is 
consistent with the following aspects of the CCAP: 

• Shift Beyond the Car: Encourage active & accessible transportation and transit. 
o Each unit has an attached secure storage shed with meets the size requirements to securely 

store a bicycle. 
o The subject property is located near Government Street, which has bike lanes and a bus 

route, as well as commercial shops and services within walking distance. 
• Electrify Passenger Transportation: Accelerate the adoption of zero-emissions vehicles. 

o The plans show four (4) EV-ready parking spaces on the property. 
• Step Up New Buildings: All new buildings will be required to meet the BC Energy Step Code 

requirements at the time of construction. 
o The new buildings will be required to meet Step 3 of the BC Energy Step Code as a minimum 

standard of energy efficiency. 

Figure 2 - Property location map 

- 53 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 12 

Technical Review 

This application was reviewed by the City’s Technical Planning Committee. The committee required 
additional information to be added to the plans to confirm that applicable zoning regulations and OCP 
design guidelines were met, which the applicant completed. The building design was amended slightly to 
meet the federal airport height regulations. Additional requirements at the future building permit stage 
were relayed to the applicant in order to expedite future permit approvals. 

This property is impacted by the federal airport zoning regulations for the Penticton Regional Airport 
approach surface. These federal regulations set a total height limitation of approximately 385m above sea 
level in affected areas, which has a greater impact on properties at higher elevations than those at lower 
elevations. At this location, the federal regulations allow a maximum structure height of approximately 7.9m 
(26 feet). The building designs comply with the maximum allowable building height under the federal 
airport zoning regulations. The applicant is aware of these federal regulations and the restriction on any 
construction equipment or structures exceeding this allowable height. The applicant is responsible for 
submitting an aeronautical assessment form to Transport Canada prior to construction. 

Development Statistics 

The following table outlines how the proposed development meets the applicable Zoning Bylaw 
regulations: 

 RD4 Zone Requirement  Provided on Plans 
Minimum Lot Width*: 18 m 14.5 m 
Minimum Lot Area*: 540 m2 578 m2 
Maximum Lot Coverage: 40% 41% - Variance Requested 
Maximum Density: 0.8 Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 0.75 FAR 

Vehicle Parking: 
1 parking space per unit 
0.25 visitor parking spaces per unit 
5 parking spaces required 

5 parking spaces provided 

Bicycle Parking: 

0.5 Class I bicycle parking spaces per 
unit 
2 Class I spaces required 
0.1 Class II bicycle parking spaces per 
unit 
No Class II spaces required 

4 Class I (secure) spaces provided 

Required Setbacks 
Front Yard (Forestbrook Dr): 
Side Yard (east): 
Side Yard (west): 
Rear Yard (lane): 

 
4.5 m 
1.5 m 
1.5 m 
6.0 m 

 
4.5 m 
1.3 m – Variance Requested 
1.3 m – Variance Requested 
7.1 m 

Maximum Building Height: 
Zoning Bylaw: 
Airport Regulations 

 
10.5 m 
7.9 m 

6.8 m 

Minimum Amenity Space: 20 m2 per unit 22 m2 per unit 

Other Information: *Lot width and lot area are only applicable at the time of subdivision. 

- 54 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 12 

Analysis 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw 

Staff review the applicable OCP policies and the future land use designation on the subject property as part 
of the review of a rezoning application. The OCP designation for the property is ‘Infill Residential’. The Infill 
Residential designation supports new housing types compatible with single detached houses in character 
and scale, providing 1 to 4 units per lot (Figure 3). The proposed development on the subject property is 
consistent with this OCP designation. 

 
Figure 3 - Excerpt from Land Use Designations table (Source: OCP) 

Staff consider that the proposed rezoning will allow for development that is supported by the following OCP 
policies: 

OCP Policy 4.1.1.1 Focus new residential development in or adjacent to existing developed areas. 
 • The subject property is located within an existing, established 

neighbourhood. 
OCP Policy 4.1.3.1 Encourage more intensive “infill” residential development in areas close to the 

Downtown, to employment, services and shopping, through zoning amendments 
for housing types compatible with existing neighbourhood character, with form 
and character guided by Development Permit Area Guidelines. 

• The proposed development would create four units where there is 
currently one.  

• The proposed buildings are two storeys high, which is consistent with the 
built form in the area.  

• The subject property is located close to schools, shops, services, and 
amenities like the KVR trail.  

• The design is aligned with the applicable Development Permit Area 
Guidelines. 

- 55 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 12 

OCP Policy 4.1.3.5 Ensure through the use of zoning that more-intensive forms of residential 
development are located close to transit and amenities, such as parks, schools and 
shopping. 

• The subject property is within walking distance of schools, parks, shopping 
and is located near Government Street with transit routes and bike lanes. 

OCP Policy 4.1.4.1 Work with the development community – architects, designers and builders – to 
create new residential developments that are attractive, high-quality, energy 
efficient, appropriately scaled and respectful of their context. 

• Staff worked with the applicant to refine the design and ensure the look 
fits with the character of the neighbourhood while working within the 
zoning requirements and airport height regulations. 

• The design respects the privacy of adjacent neighbours by limiting side-
facing windows to the first floor and providing all outdoor amenity space 
at grade which limits overlook into neighbouring backyards. 

OCP Policy 4.1.5.1 Recognize that some traditionally single-family neighbourhoods will see 
intensification as the city grows, but ensure that new forms of residential 
development are compatible with the neighbourhood in scale and design, and are 
appropriately located (e.g., greater density close to collector roads, services and 
amenities). 

• This block of Forestbrook Drive has seen four recent developments as it is a 
street in transition with older homes gradually being replaced with 
compatible small-scale infill developments. The subject property is located 
near Government Street, a collector road, and within walking distance of 
shops, services and amenities.  

OCP Policy 4.1.5.3 Use Multifamily and Intensive Residential Development Permit Area Guidelines to 
direct, through the City’s approval processes, the character and feel of residential 
neighbourhoods, as well as guide water and energy conservation. 

• The applicant has submitted a Development Permit Analysis with their 
application package (Attachment ‘F’). In addition, staff have prepared a 
Development Permit Analysis (Attachment ‘H’). These analyses show the 
proposal is aligned with the applicable guidelines. 

OCP Policy 4.2.2.5 Require that vehicle access to parking in residential areas is from the laneway in 
neighbourhoods where laneways exist. 

• In accordance with this policy and the Zoning Bylaw regulations, all vehicle 
parking is provided from the rear lane. This maintains the streetscape for 
landscaping, avoids driveway crossovers, and maintains public on-street 
parking. 

The OCP policies encourage infill development in areas close to services, parks, and shops to encourage 
walkability and active transportation. Staff note this property is within walking distance of two schools, 
Kiwanis Park, the KVR trail, and shops and services along Government Street. The development has been 
designed with parking from the rear lane, which preserves the street free of any driveway crossovers and 
allows more landscaping areas on the street side of the site. 

- 56 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 12 

Staff consider that the application proposes an appropriately-scaled development in an area of the 
community that has been identified for a moderate increase in density by the OCP. The proposed rezoning is 
consistent with the housing forms envisioned by the ‘Infill Residential’ future land use designation on the 
property. 

Given that there is adequate policy through the OCP to support the proposal, staff recommend Council give 
first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2023-01”, and forward the bylaw to the February 7, 2023 
Public Hearing to obtain public input on the proposal. 

Development Variance Permit 

When considering a variance application, staff encourage Council to consider whether approval of the 
variance would cause a negative impact on neighbouring properties and if the variance request is 
reasonable. Staff have reviewed the requested variances and are recommending support for both variances 
for the following reasons: 

Section 10.7.2.3: to increase the maximum lot coverage from 40% to 41%. 

• Lot coverage is limited to 40% in many lower density residential zones in Penticton, 
• Lot coverage includes the area of the lot covered by buildings and certain structures projecting from 

the buildings, 
• In this case, the applicant is requesting 1% additional lot coverage in order to provide 3-bedroom 

units, 
• The design provides attached storage sheds for each unit, which is considered a valuable amenity 

given that there are no basements in these buildings, however the attached storage sheds do count 
towards the overall lot coverage, 

• 1% additional lot coverage allows the developer to cover an additional 6m2 (62ft2) of the lot which is 
considered minor in nature, 

• The design is limited to two storeys as a result of the federal airport zoning restrictions, 
• A two storey build is more in line with the built form in this area but limits the allowable square 

footage of each unit compared to a three-storey design, 
• The increased lot coverage is not expected to result in negative impacts to surrounding property 

owners, and 
• The majority of the lot (59%) will remain open as landscaped area, sidewalk, and parking area. 

Section 10.7.2.7.a.i: to reduce the minimum interior side yard setback from 1.5m to 1.3m. 

• The RD4 zone allows for 1.5m interior side yard setbacks when buildings are two storeys and up to 
8m in height, 

• The applicant is proposing 3-bedroom units on the property and given the width of those units, is 
requesting 1.3m interior side yard setbacks, 

• The applicant has advised that should they be required to meet the 1.5m setback requirement the 
units would have to be changed to 2-bedroom units, losing a bedroom and potential home office 
space (Attachment ‘E’), 

• The site is limited by the federal airport zoning regulations to a two-storey build, 

- 57 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 12 

• The second floor has no windows along the sides of the building and no upper level balconies, 
which helps maintain privacy of the neighbours and reduce visual overlook from the proposed 
development, 

• Staff support the requested variance given that the development plans show the required 1.2m wide 
access path along the west side of the property while providing the required landscape buffer on the 
east side of the property. 

The applicant has further outlined their rationale for the requested variances in the Letter of Rationale for 
Variances included as Attachment ‘E’. The applicant included a Letter of Support from one of the 
neighbouring property owners (550 Forestbrook Drive) who notes they are in support of the requested 
variances and the proposed development (Attachment ‘G’). 

Given the reasons above, staff consider that the two requested variances are minor in nature and approval of 
the variances will not negatively impact the neighbouring properties. The two requested variances are 
considered reasonable in this instance and staff are recommending that Council approve the application 
and direct staff to issue the permit. 

Development Permit 

The proposed development is included in the Multifamily Residential Development Permit Area, which is 
established by the OCP to enhance neighbourhoods and create sensitive transitions in scale and density by 
addressing issues such as privacy, landscape retention and neighbourliness.  

The applicant has provided a development permit analysis with their submission (Attachment ‘F’). Staff have 
also completed a development permit analysis (Attachment ‘H’) that shows how the proposed development 
conforms to the applicable design guidelines.  

- 58 -



 
Council Report  Page 8 of 12 

The OCP allows for minor variances through a development 
permit, rather than through a standalone development variance 
permit application. The applicant is proposing a reduced 
landscape buffer width along the west property line (Figure 3). 
Landscape buffers are required in the Zoning Bylaw between 
multifamily developments and single detached homes. Section 
5.1.4 of the Official Community Plan allows variances to 
landscape buffers in cases where “the proposed building 
locations make establishment of a buffer difficult or impossible 
or where the trees will not thrive…in cases where the buffer is 
reduced, compensatory planting elsewhere on site or in the 
adjacent public realm is required.” In this instance, the west 
landscape buffer is reduced in width on the plans from 3m to 
0m at its narrowest point, as a result of the required 1.2m wide 
pedestrian access path between the street and the rear-facing 
units on that side of the property. That path will provide 
emergency services access to rear-facing units, given that 
emergency services will always access properties from the street 
– never the lane. The east landscape buffer remains at the 
allowable 1.3m required width, based on the setback variance. 
Staff are supporting the landscape buffer variance through the 
development permit because the plan still provides the 
required number of trees along that side (3) and compensatory 
shrub plantings have been provided in the front yard, where there is a total of four trees and 40 shrubs. 
There is no opportunity to provide the required landscaping along the full length of the western property 
line and provide the minimum 1.2m wide access path in the same location. 

Staff consider the proposed development has been designed with the applicable OCP policies in mind and 
with due consideration of impacts on neighbouring property owners. As such, staff recommend that Council 
consider approving “Development Permit PL2022-9456”, subject to approval of “Development Variance 
Permit PL2022-9455”. 

Alternate Recommendations 

Council may consider that the proposed rezoning is not suitable for this site. If this is the case, Council 
should deny the bylaw amendment. Staff are not recommending this option, as the proposal is aligned with 
the OCP designation for the property and gently increases the density in this well-serviced area of the City.  

1. THAT Council deny first reading of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2023-01”. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Zoning Map 
Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 
Attachment C – Photo of Property 
Attachment D – Letter of Intent (applicant) 

Figure 3 - Reduced landscape buffer shown in red 

- 59 -



 
Council Report  Page 9 of 12 

Attachment E – Letter of Rationale for Variances (applicant) 
Attachment F – Development Permit Analysis (applicant) 
Attachment G – Letter of Support from Neighbour 
Attachment H – Development Permit Analysis (staff) 
Attachment I – Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2023-01 
Attachment J – Draft Development Variance Permit PL2022-9455 
Attachment K – Draft Development Permit PL2022-9456 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Steven Collyer, RPP, MCIP 
Planner II 

 

Concurrence  

Director of 
Development Services 

General Manager 
Infrastructure  

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

BL 
KD  

DvD 
 

 

  

- 60 -



 
Council Report  Page 10 of 12 

Attachment A – Zoning Map 

 
  

- 61 -



 
Council Report  Page 11 of 12 

Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map 

 
  

- 62 -



 
Council Report  Page 12 of 12 

Attachment C – Photo of Property 
 

 
 

 

 

Subject Property: 
532 Forestbrook Dr 

550 Forestbrook Dr 

500 Forestbrook Dr 

Forestbrook Dr 

- 63 -



November 26, 2022

City of Penticton
171 Main Street
Penticton, BC V2A 5A9

Re: 532 Forestbrook Drive Development Permit Application

To City of Penticton Mayor, Council, and Planning Department,

This letter is regarding the proposed rezoning and development of the property located at 532
Forestbrook Drive. The existing lot is currently zoned R2 with future OCP designation of infill residential.
We are seeking support when reviewing our application to rezone the property to RD4 for a two duplex
development. Due to the unique lot dimensions of this neighborhood, we are asking for a small side yard
variance from 1.5 meter to 1.3 meter as well as lot coverage increase from 40% to 40.8%.

The proposed two storey development is designed to compliment the neighborhood. We have chosen
exterior elements which create visual interest to users and the public. The site design has minimal impact
on adjacent dwellings by minimizing views with building design considerations and privacy screens. The
landscape plan looks to significantly improve the existing site and adds trees and shrubs throughout the
property. We have also designed amenity space intended for use of all ages and is friendly for families,
retirees and children.

We echo the City of Penticton’s message of being climate leaders with a goal to develop energy efficient
buildings. Our development will be solar energy ready with capabilities for electric vehicle charging. We
have considered additional bike storage for all units and while meeting required parking bylaws.

We intend to develop this property within the next 12 months to meet the City of Penticton’s much needed
affordable family housing needs. This multi-family proposal is in alignment with the Official Community
Plan with multiple similar developments within the area. We intend to densify a property that is located
near schools, day-to-day shops, and parks. We will continue to work closely with the city staff, council and
the public to ensure quality and satisfaction.

Sincerely,

Lakehaven Group

Attachment D - Letter of Intent (applicant) - 64 -



November 26, 2022

City of Penticton
171 Main Street
Penticton, BC V2A 5A9

Re: 532 Forestbrook Drive Development Permit Analysis

To City of Penticton Mayor, Council, and Planning Department,

As part of our analysis, we write to discuss our requested variances for the development application of
532 Forestbrook Drive. We are requesting a minor side yard variance from 1.5 meter to 1.3 meter as well
as lot coverage increase from 40% to 40.8%.  After thorough review and analysis of this project, we feel it
is necessary to request this minor variance for the function and livability for future homeowners. The
variance has minimum impact on the site design or the neighborhood.

This development was designed to maximize livability. Side yard variance request allows for the creation
of an office space. As a growing number of people are working from home and choosing Penticton as
their residence, the addition of the interior amenity space serves a well needed and desired addition.
Developments of this type use side yards as access ways from the front to the back of the property. There
is a 1.3 meter walkway on the west side and landscape buffer on the east side of the property. Landscape
buffers are creatively built into this space while meeting the bylaw for trees and shrubs. We have
accounted for Penticton Fire Department requirements and OCP guidelines with this design.There is no
additional impact on neighboring properties as a six feet fence separates both spaces with additional
screening for amenity spaces.

The purpose of the lot coverage request is to increase the size of the storage sheds for each unit. The
increase of 0.8% or 53 square feet increases each shed by 50%. This serves a better function for the
homeowner and allows for additional bike storage. The proposed development is within 200 meters of a
bike lane, close to schools and parks and the KVR trail.

This subset of lots have a unique denomination of widths compared to similar lots in Penticton. The other
three lots to the eastern side are 47.5 feet in width as well. The lot was subdivided in 1947 and did not
account for future use or impact of irregular widths with today's standards, but instead likely served to
equally divide a large parcel. Although this development can be accomplished without variances, the
need for it serves a better function to the homeowner. It is common to see infill lots of 50 feet in width.

Over recent years we have noted council and community comments. Storage space for affordable homes
is often an afterthought for these types of developments. The increase in lot coverage is minimum and
only affects the rear yard of each unit. The office space adds a feature to work from home which has
become popular since Covid. Many families struggle to transition to Penticton as the second partner finds

Attachment E - Letter of Rationale for Variances (applicant)- 65 -



it difficult to find local work. By providing the office space, homeowners have the additional option without
sacrificing bedrooms or being forced to find more expensive housing to accommodate their needs.

After analyzing multiple projects with similar side yard variances and increased lot coverage, we believe
we are well within the precedent already established. Allowing for this variance, you will increase the
function, flow and feel of the units for occupants of all age groups. We respectfully request your
consideration and are open to your comments and questions. With a focus on design considerations at
planning stages, Penticton residents will be the ultimate benefactors.

Sincerely,

Lakehaven Group

- 66 -



Development Permit Analysis - 532 Forestbrook Dr

Site Planning

Designing in Context

G1. Prior to site design, analysis shall be undertaken to identify significant on-site and off-site
opportunities and constraints, including built and natural elements (e.g., structures, slopes and
drainage, significant landscape features, etc.):

This site poses minimum challenges for new development. The immediate neighborhood has
seen many new projects started and/or completed of similar size and style. The property has
lane way access with room for additional parking. While canvassing and taking part in other
developments in the neighborhood, soil conditions are ideal for drainage and good sun
exposure for solar. Only one existing tree on site that is to be replaced by eight new trees of
appropriate size.

G2. Applications shall include a comprehensive site plan – considering adjacent context for
building and landscape architectural design and neighbourhood character analysis – to
demonstrate that the development is sensitive to and integrated within its context and
surrounding uses and neighbours:

Significant number of properties on the same street have been developed within the last five
years and more in the neighborhood. Cladding styles consist of hardie board, stone, brick, and
stucco with a mix of flat and peaked roof lines. The use of exterior materials on this project fit
well with the current homes in the neighborhood. Additionally, to mitigate any concerns about
overshadowing of neighbouring properties the building height will be limited to two stories with
minimum views to neighboring properties and a six feet fence along the perimeter for privacy.

G3. Private and semi-private open spaces should be designed to optimize solar access:

Each duplex is designed to be solar ready. Courtyards between buildings are open for Southern
exposure which improves solar capabilities. There is a minimum impact on building design from
street view for the public realm.

1

Attachment F - Development Permit Analysis (applicant) - 67 -



Framing Space

G5. Siting of buildings should support strong street definition by minimizing front yard setbacks
while sensitively transitioning to neighbouring building setbacks:

The development is proposed at the minimum 4.5m set back, which improves connectivity
between the building, the street and the pedestrian realm. There is landscaping and trees in the
front yards to create interest to the public.

G7. All designs shall consider Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED)
principles and balance the reduction of crime and nuisance opportunities with other objectives to
maximize the enjoyment of the built environment:

To maximize prevention of crimes or potential crimes, homes will be ready for security
surveillance at the front and rear of the property. We will encourage neighboring properties to
take part in similar security protocols using cloud based devices to detect, prevent and if need
be identify possible crimes. If at the time of suggestion, neighboring properties choose to install
devices, Lakehaven Homes will offer to assist in install. This allows full enjoyment in a safe
environment for neighbors, the nearby schools, and the public.

Prioritizing Pedestrians

G9. Pedestrian connectivity to adjacent properties is encouraged. With the exception of private
yards, open spaces shall be designed for public access and connectivity to adjacent public
areas (and publicly-accessible private spaces):

The development is on a road with pedestrian sidewalks and within walking distance to schools,
parks and shopping. Bike lane access is within 200m of the property along with city bus stops to
allow for easy transit use.

G11. Barrier-free pedestrian walkways to primary building entrances must be provided from
municipal sidewalks, parking areas, storage, garbage and amenity areas:

Our proposal includes clear and well lit pathways on each side of the development from the
front of the property to the rear of the property. This allows access to parking areas, rear yards,
storage units and garbage and recycling areas.

G13. Entry to ground-level residential units should be no more than 1.8m (6.0 ft.) above the
grade of adjacent public sidewalks and walkways:

Building design will have recessed joists. This will allow for no additional steps and better
wheelchair accessibility.

2

- 68 -



G14. The outdoor space of a residential unit should be raised no more than 1.2m (3.9 ft.) above
adjacent public sidewalks and a “front stair” pedestrian connection shall be provided:

Each unit is well below maximum 1.2m allowance with no additional step ups.

Cars and Parking

G16. Site and building access must prioritize pedestrian movement, minimize conflict between
various modes of transportation and optimize use of space:

The parking area for the proposed development is accessed from the rear lane. A separate path
on the west side of the property provides dedicated pedestrian access to each unit from the
parking area to the front street. This design minimizes conflicts between vehicles and
pedestrians.

G17. On-site parking location and design should minimize visual impact and provide safe
connections for pedestrians:

The parking area is located at the rear of the property, accessed from the rear lane. This
minimizes the visual impact of parking from the street. Safe pedestrian access is provided for
this design. A path is proposed along the west side of the builds to access each unit

G19. All multifamily developments should accommodate sustainable modes of transportation
through:

The development will provide eight class one bike parking stalls, more than the recommended
amount set out in the zoning bylaws. Each parking stall is also equipped to be EV charger ready
to encourage more sustainable modes of transportations.

Architecture

Design for Our Climate

G20. Designs should respond to Penticton’s setting and climate through use of:

The design maximizes natural light via large windows in all living spaces and bedrooms.
Windows are designed to be energy-efficient. The proposed trees between backyards allow for
natural shading during summer months without encroaching on solar panels for winter months.
Design also includes covered front and back patio entrances to prevent snow buildup at
doorways.

3

- 69 -



Friendly Faces, Friendly Neighbours (Orientation & Massing)

G21. Orientation of buildings should face public spaces (e.g., street and lane) with a preference
for ground-oriented types (e.g., a front door for everyone or every business):

Each duplex unit has its own front door entrance. There will be two units that will face the street
and two units that will face the lane. All entrances are ground-oriented.

G24. Street-facing units should utilize a layering of elements – including but not limited to
street-facing entries, stairs, stoops, porches, patios and landscape elements – to create
transitions between the public (e.g., street, sidewalk), semi-public (e.g., walkway, ramp, stair),
semi-private (e.g., stoop, balcony) and private areas:

Street facing units combine three distinct cladding materials to fit the neighborhood. The units
are designed with varying levels of depth for interest to the public realm and feature overhangs
and porches connected by pathways. Landscape features connect from the unit to the sidewalk.

G25. Where appropriate, stepped massing should be utilized to transition and improve the
relationship between developments of differing scale. In areas where there is an OCP Land Use
Designation change, adjacent building heights should not be greater than one-and-a-half
storeys higher than existing adjacent development with additional storeys terraced back with a
minimum stepback of 3.0 meters:

Neighboring units are between 1.5-2 stories in height. Our design is built at a similar scale to the
direct neighbors to the front, back and sides of the property.

G26. Building designs should minimize impacts on the privacy of adjacent dwellings, including
private open spaces:

Units are designed with maximum view from front to back and limit side windows to adjacent
properties. There is a six feet high fence between walkways and neighboring private open
spaces as well as a secondary fence between unit backyards to increase privacy within the
development.

Eyes on the Street

G28. Entries should be visible and clearly identifiable from the fronting public street:

The entrance to each unit is at ground level connected by pathways to public sidewalks. Unit
addressing is clearly identifiable from the street.

4

- 70 -



G29. Development should orient windows, porches, balconies and patios toward the public
realm, allowing for casual overlook of parks, open spaces, and parking areas:

Units are designed with large windows and porches with views to nearby parks.

G31. Provide screening (e.g., varied materials/textures, murals, greenwalls or vines) on solid
walls that exist as a function of an internal program (e.g., for privacy, merchandising, etc.):

Units are divided by partial exterior party walls with similar architectural design to the building.

Landscape Architecture

Design with Nature

G33. Water Conservation and Plant Maintenance:

Landscaping is designed with drought resistant and low maintenance plants. Trees and shrubs
such as Sunburst Honeylocust and Concorde Barberry are also deer resistant, a common but
not often addressed issue within the community. Mulch is used as bedding to retain soil
moisture and reduce irrigation demand as well as additional layer of topsoil in grassed areas.

Enhance the Urban Forest

G34/35. Tree planting :

Landscape plan shows eight new trees along the front and sides of the property. There is only
one existing tree on site and due to location poses a risk to neighboring properties. More
appropriately sized trees to be planted with interest to the public.

Materials Selection – Softscapes & Hardscapes

G41. Softscapes:

Plant material selection has been proposed to match the BLNA standards and sourced as
available and hardy within the region's local nurseries. Tree selection is recommended from the
City of Penticton Recommended Trees provided by staff. Trees provide cover for shrubs as heat
protection in the summer and change colours in the fall.

G42. Hardscapes:

The topography of the property requires minimum use of retaining walls. Impervious surfaces
are only used in required areas for unit and public access, parking and for Penticton Fire
Department.

5

- 71 -



Special Considerations

Lighting

G48/49/51. Lighting:

Lighting is to be used to maximize orientation, personal safety and security. Each unit has front
entry lighting. Side walkways are to be illuminated with motion sensored lighting directed
downward so as to not create nuisance to neighboring properties. Light temperature is a
comfortable 3000K.

Waste Management

G58/59/60. Garbage/recycling:

Garbage and recycling areas are located within rear yards of each unit. Six feet fences screen
yards and carts. This location does not impede on pedestrian walkways or PFD. The location
also has entry from the rear of the units with no disturbance to the public.

Fences

G61/62/63. Fencing:

All fencing shown on the landscape plan allows for maximum privacy between neighbours and
development units.

6

- 72 -



Multifamily Residential Guidelines

Site Planning

Framing Space

MF1. All multifamily developments should incorporate community amenity spaces that provide
opportunity for recreation and play and address the needs of all age groups likely to reside
within the development:

Each unit has its own 27m² ground level amenity space. Backyard includes patio space for
entertainment and family activities.

Parking

MF4. Visitor parking should be:
• in public view,
• easily accessible near the main entry to the site, and
• clearly indicated by pavement markings and/or signs

Visitor stall is provided from the laneway which is the main vehicle entry for the site. The parking
stall is clearly marked as VISITOR.

MF5. Electric vehicle charging stations should be provided in larger developments:

Even though a small development, we have provided the option for electric vehicle charging to
each unit. It is incorporated into the landscape and parking design.

7

- 73 -



Attachment G - Letter of Support from Neighbour - 74 -



 

 

 

 

 



Attachment H - Development Permit Analysis (staff)
- 75 -



 

 

 

 

 

 

- 76 -



 

 

 

 

 

 

- 77 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2023-01  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2023-01 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2023-01”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

Rezone Lot 2 District Lot 249 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 3966, located at 532 
Forestbrook Drive, from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RD4 (Low Density Cluster Housing). 
 

2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
 
 
READ A FIRST time this  day of , 2023 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this  day of , 2023 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2023 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2023 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2023 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the __ day of ____, 2023 and the __ day of ____, 2023 in an online news 
source and the newspaper, pursuant to Section 94.2 of the Community Charter.  

 
 

      
 Julius Bloomfield, Mayor 
      

 
 

       
 Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
 
  

- 78 -



�����
���	
��	����������	�
�	��������������

 	!�"�#$"	�%&'()*+,-.'/*)0*,/)123'4,1)*,5+,-4678)0)/-,592*),/)/7,*&45)/*'32/33):)*28-,59;%&'1,650'<2006520+2/30,948'*'/'11,-*&)1)/-,592*),/=25)'1;>125'168*<*&'()*+3,'1/,*?2552/*)/2/+?2+*&'9244)/:)/-,592*),/)/0863)/:*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-;%&'61'5,-*&)1)/-,592*),/3,'11,2**&')5,?/5)1@2/31&,683/,*5'8+64,/*&')/-,592*),/?)*&,6*)/3'4'/3'/*='5)-)02*),/21*,*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-; ABCDE E FEAGH'*'51I����!�JK����L�MN�J��O P��!
����	��"�	��Q�R�LS�P�T�$ O���	��Q

- 79 -

mcdonah
Typewritten Text
Date:                                               Corporate Officer:



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DVP PL2022-9455 Page 1 of 3

DRAFT

- 80 -



DVP PL2022-9455 Page 2 of 3

DRAFT

- 81 -



N

DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY:

BYLAW SUMMARY (RD4):

DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DVP PL2022-9455
DVP PL2022-9455 Page 3 of 3

- 82 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
19'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
19'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
19'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
19'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
376.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
376.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTRELINE OF SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTRELINE OF LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN 3966

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN 3565

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN 8087

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORESTBROOK DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.498m

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.556m

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.630m

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.284m

AutoCAD SHX Text
19'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
19'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'-11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'-11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
23'-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
23'-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.4 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
Main Floor

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.6 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
Main Floor

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
AERIAL VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  CIVIC ADDRESS: OCP: ZONING: BUILDING COVERAGE AREA: LOT AREA:  HVAC / HRV SOLAR: EV CHARGING: PARKING: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2 DISTRICT LOT 249 SIMILKAMEEN DIVISION YALE DISTRICT PLAN 3966 INFILL RESIDENTIAL R2 REZONING TO RD4 115 M^2  /  1277 FT^2 (per building) 578 M^2  /  6223 FT^2 - ROOF TRUSSES SOLAR READY WITH ROUGH-IN  ROUGH-IN EV CHARGING (4) RESERVED, (1) VISITOR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
532 FORESTBROOK DR.  PENTICTON BC

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT COVERAGE: DENSITY: MAX HEIGHT: SET BACKS: FRONT PARCEL LINE: REAR PARCEL LINE: SIDE PARCEL LINE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
40% 0.8 FAR 10.5M 4.5M 6.0M 1.5M

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLOWABLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIANCE REQUIRED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
41% 0.8 FAR 6.8M 4.5M 7.1M 1.3M

AutoCAD SHX Text
YES N/A N/A N/A N/A YES

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) DUPLEX INFILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
532 FORESTBROOK DR.  PENTICTON BC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET #

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
email: info@compositedesign.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
phone: (250) 808.7703

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL WORK IS TO BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH PART 9 OF THE BRITISH COLUMBIA BUILDING CODE. PORTIONS OF WORK FALLING OUTSIDE PART 9 SHALL BE DESIGN BY A LICENSED ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT. THESE DRAWINGS ARE THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF COMPOSITE DESIGN & DEVELOPMENT LTD. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK; ANY ERRORS OR OMISSIONS SHALL BE REPORTED WITHOUT DELAY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
of

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPT 2, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
60% DESIGN DEVELOPMENT (PRELIMINARY REVIEW ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPT 23, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
90% DESIGN DEVELOPMENT (REVIEW ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS3

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCT 4, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS4

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
TPC REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEC 2, 2022



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT

DP PL2022-9456 Page 1 of 8

- 83 -



 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT

DP PL2022-9456 Page 2 of 8

- 84 -



N

DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY:

BYLAW SUMMARY (RD4):

DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DP PL2022-9456
DP PL2022-9456 Page 3 of 8

- 85 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
19'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
19'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
19'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
19'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
376.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
376.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTRELINE OF SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTRELINE OF LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN 3966

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN 3565

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN 8087

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORESTBROOK DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.498m

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.556m

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.630m

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.284m

AutoCAD SHX Text
19'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
19'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'-11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
21'-11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'-4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
23'-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
23'-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.4 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
Main Floor

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.6 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
Main Floor

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
AERIAL VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  CIVIC ADDRESS: OCP: ZONING: BUILDING COVERAGE AREA: LOT AREA:  HVAC / HRV SOLAR: EV CHARGING: PARKING: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2 DISTRICT LOT 249 SIMILKAMEEN DIVISION YALE DISTRICT PLAN 3966 INFILL RESIDENTIAL R2 REZONING TO RD4 115 M^2  /  1277 FT^2 (per building) 578 M^2  /  6223 FT^2 - ROOF TRUSSES SOLAR READY WITH ROUGH-IN  ROUGH-IN EV CHARGING (4) RESERVED, (1) VISITOR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
532 FORESTBROOK DR.  PENTICTON BC

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT COVERAGE: DENSITY: MAX HEIGHT: SET BACKS: FRONT PARCEL LINE: REAR PARCEL LINE: SIDE PARCEL LINE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
40% 0.8 FAR 10.5M 4.5M 6.0M 1.5M

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLOWABLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIANCE REQUIRED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
41% 0.8 FAR 6.8M 4.5M 7.1M 1.3M

AutoCAD SHX Text
YES N/A N/A N/A N/A YES

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) DUPLEX INFILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
532 FORESTBROOK DR.  PENTICTON BC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET #

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
email: info@compositedesign.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
phone: (250) 808.7703

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL WORK IS TO BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH PART 9 OF THE BRITISH COLUMBIA BUILDING CODE. PORTIONS OF WORK FALLING OUTSIDE PART 9 SHALL BE DESIGN BY A LICENSED ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT. THESE DRAWINGS ARE THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF COMPOSITE DESIGN & DEVELOPMENT LTD. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK; ANY ERRORS OR OMISSIONS SHALL BE REPORTED WITHOUT DELAY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
of

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPT 2, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
60% DESIGN DEVELOPMENT (PRELIMINARY REVIEW ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPT 23, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
90% DESIGN DEVELOPMENT (REVIEW ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS3

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCT 4, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS4

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
TPC REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEC 2, 2022



GENERAL NOTES:

HARDSCAPING:

1. PLANT MATERIAL AND CONSTRUCTION METHODS SHALL CONFORM TO THE MOST RECENT EDITION OF THE BC LANDSCAPE STANDARDS

PUBLISHED BY THE BCSLA.

2. AN AUTOMATIC TIMED IRRIGATION SYSTEM SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS AS PER MANUFACTURER INSTALLATION

SPECIFICATIONS.

3. THE CONTRACTOR/ OWNER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING ALL UTILITY LINES WITH BC FIRST CALL PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. ALL
TEMPORARY BRACING, JOB SITE SAFETY AND CONFORMANCE TO WCB REGULATIONS DURING CONSTRUCTION ARE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF
THE CONTRACTOR.

4. ALL ROOF DRAINAGE TO BE DIRECTED TO ON-SITE APPROVED HOLDING TANK AND/OR APPROVED ABSORBENT LANDSCAPE MATERIAL. SEE
ENGINEERING SPECIFICATIONS OR AS PER THE AHJ.

5. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS, ELEVATIONS, AND SITE CONDITIONS PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION, AND SHALL IMMEDIATELY

NOTIFY COMPOSITE DESIGN AND/OR OWNER UPON DISCOVERING ANY DISCREPANCIES.

6. GRADES SHOWN ON PLANS ARE ESTIMATED, FOUNDATION WALL HEIGHTS AND STRUCTURAL DESIGN REQUIREMENTS MAY REQUIRE

ADJUSTMENTS TO SUIT SITE CONDITIONS.

MATERIAL

ASPHALT

CONCRETE WALKWAYS AND PATIOS

ROCK / MULCH BEDDING

SOFTSCAPING:
MATERIAL

SUNBURST HONEYLOCUST (Gleditsia triacanthos var.)

TREES (MINIMUM CALIPER - 60mm w/ CLEAR STEM HEIGHT OF 1.5m)

SHRUBS (Pot Size - No.2)

PERENNIALS & ORNAMENTAL GRASSES

TURF GRASS

LANDSCAPE PLAN

NOTES

NOTES

DROUGHT TOLERANT, DEER RESISTANT

ASPHALT PARKING

PATIO CONC. SLAB

HONEYLOCUST (QTY 8)

6FT WOOD FENCE w/ GATE

BOXWOOD  (QTY 65)

ROCK / MULCH
BEDDING

6FT WOOD FENCE
(PROP. LINE)

SIDEWALK

FORESTBROOK DRIVE

ALLEYWAY

ALLEYWAY PARKING

4" SLAB ON GRADE (10Mx19.2"o/c)

W/ LANDSCAPE FABRIC UNDERNEATH

CONCORDE BARBERRY (Berberis thunbergil var.) DROUGHT TOLERANT, DEER RESISTANT

GREEN GEM BOXWOOD (Buxus var.) LOW MAINTANENCE

4FT WOOD FENCE
(FRONT YARD)

BIKE STORAGE/SHED

UTILITY METERSFRONT
DUPLEX

BACK
DUPLEX

BARBERRY  (QTY 63)

EV CHARGING
ROUGH-IN LOCATION

AC UNIT

GARBAGE & RECYCLE BINS
1X120L & 1X240L, PER UNIT

QTY

UTILITY METERS

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DP PL2022-9456
DP PL2022-9456 Page 4 of 8

- 86 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) DUPLEX INFILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
532 FORESTBROOK DR.  PENTICTON BC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET #

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
email: info@compositedesign.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
phone: (250) 808.7703

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL WORK IS TO BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH PART 9 OF THE BRITISH COLUMBIA BUILDING CODE. PORTIONS OF WORK FALLING OUTSIDE PART 9 SHALL BE DESIGN BY A LICENSED ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT. THESE DRAWINGS ARE THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF COMPOSITE DESIGN & DEVELOPMENT LTD. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK; ANY ERRORS OR OMISSIONS SHALL BE REPORTED WITHOUT DELAY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
of

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPT 2, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
60% DESIGN DEVELOPMENT (PRELIMINARY REVIEW ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPT 23, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
90% DESIGN DEVELOPMENT (REVIEW ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS3

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCT 4, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS4

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
TPC REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEC 2, 2022



FOUNDATION & MAIN FLOOR

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DP PL2022-9456
DP PL2022-9456 Page 5 of 8

- 87 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUNDATION LAYOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAWLSPACE ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAWLSPACE ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO SLAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO SLAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
HRV

AutoCAD SHX Text
HW

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANTILEVER FLOOR ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANTILEVER FLOOR ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEAM & ROOF LINE ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF LINE ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE / SHELVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESK

AutoCAD SHX Text
A2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) DUPLEX INFILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
532 FORESTBROOK DR.  PENTICTON BC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET #

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
email: info@compositedesign.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
phone: (250) 808.7703

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL WORK IS TO BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH PART 9 OF THE BRITISH COLUMBIA BUILDING CODE. PORTIONS OF WORK FALLING OUTSIDE PART 9 SHALL BE DESIGN BY A LICENSED ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT. THESE DRAWINGS ARE THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF COMPOSITE DESIGN & DEVELOPMENT LTD. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK; ANY ERRORS OR OMISSIONS SHALL BE REPORTED WITHOUT DELAY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
of

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPT 2, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
60% DESIGN DEVELOPMENT (PRELIMINARY REVIEW ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPT 23, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
90% DESIGN DEVELOPMENT (REVIEW ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS3

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCT 4, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS4

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
TPC REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEC 2, 2022



UPPER FLOOR & ROOF

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DP PL2022-9456
DP PL2022-9456 Page 6 of 8

- 88 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF LINE BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF LINE BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/12 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLAR READY ROOF TRUSSES

AutoCAD SHX Text
A2.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) DUPLEX INFILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
532 FORESTBROOK DR.  PENTICTON BC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET #

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
email: info@compositedesign.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
phone: (250) 808.7703

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL WORK IS TO BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH PART 9 OF THE BRITISH COLUMBIA BUILDING CODE. PORTIONS OF WORK FALLING OUTSIDE PART 9 SHALL BE DESIGN BY A LICENSED ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT. THESE DRAWINGS ARE THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF COMPOSITE DESIGN & DEVELOPMENT LTD. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK; ANY ERRORS OR OMISSIONS SHALL BE REPORTED WITHOUT DELAY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
of

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPT 2, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
60% DESIGN DEVELOPMENT (PRELIMINARY REVIEW ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPT 23, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
90% DESIGN DEVELOPMENT (REVIEW ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS3

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCT 4, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS4

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
TPC REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEC 2, 2022



GENERAL NOTES:

EXTERIOR NOTES
1

2

3

4

1. ALL WORK TO CONFORM TO BRITISH COLUMBIA BUILDING CODE (BCBC), LOCAL BYLAWS,
DEVELOPMENT PERMITS, AND SUB-TRADE ASSOCIATIONS GOVERNING EACH TRADE

INVOLVED IN THE PROJECT.

2. ALL DRAWINGS ARE TO BE  READ AS A COMPLETE SET IN CONJUNCTION WITH MECHANICAL,
ELECTRICAL, GEOTECHNICAL, STRUCTURAL, AND CIVIL DOCUMENTATION, AS REQUIRED.

3. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL TEMPORARY BRACING, JOB SITE SAFETY AND
CONFORMANCE TO WCB REGULATIONS DURING CONSTRUCTION.

4. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS, ELEVATIONS, AND SITE CONDITIONS PRIOR TO 
STARTING CONSTRUCTION, AND SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY COMPOSITE DESIGN AND/OR

OWNER UPON DISCOVERING ANY DISCREPANCIES.

5. GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE SMOKE ALARMS, CARBON MONOXIDE DETECTORS,

EXHAUST FANS, FLASHING EXTERIOR WALL PENETRATIONS, AND RADON MITIGATION ARE
CARRIED OUT IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE CURRENT BCBC AND LOCAL BYLAWS.

6. GRADES SHOWN ON PLANS ARE ESTIMATED, FOUNDATION WALL HEIGHTS AND
STRUCTURAL DESIGN REQUIREMENTS MAY REQUIRE ADJUSTMENTS TO SUIT SITE
CONDITIONS.

ELEVATIONS

- ASPHALT SHINGLES (SEE BUILDING ASSEMBLIES)

- BOARD AND BATTEN SIDING (FIBER CEMENT BOARD)

- HORIZONTAL PLANK SIDING (FIBER CEMENT BOARD)

- STONE VENEER

1

1

2

2

3

3

4

4

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DP PL2022-9456
DP PL2022-9456 Page 7 of 8

- 89 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
22'-2 "78"

AutoCAD SHX Text
22'-2 "78"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.44 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
385.24 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
22'-2 "78"

AutoCAD SHX Text
22'-2 "78"

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.44 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
385.24 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) DUPLEX INFILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
532 FORESTBROOK DR.  PENTICTON BC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET #

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
email: info@compositedesign.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
phone: (250) 808.7703

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL WORK IS TO BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH PART 9 OF THE BRITISH COLUMBIA BUILDING CODE. PORTIONS OF WORK FALLING OUTSIDE PART 9 SHALL BE DESIGN BY A LICENSED ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT. THESE DRAWINGS ARE THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF COMPOSITE DESIGN & DEVELOPMENT LTD. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK; ANY ERRORS OR OMISSIONS SHALL BE REPORTED WITHOUT DELAY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
of

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPT 2, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
60% DESIGN DEVELOPMENT (PRELIMINARY REVIEW ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPT 23, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
90% DESIGN DEVELOPMENT (REVIEW ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS3

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCT 4, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS4

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
TPC REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEC 2, 2022



ELEVATIONS

GENERAL NOTES:

EXTERIOR NOTES
1

2

3

4

1. ALL WORK TO CONFORM TO BRITISH COLUMBIA BUILDING CODE (BCBC), LOCAL BYLAWS,
DEVELOPMENT PERMITS, AND SUB-TRADE ASSOCIATIONS GOVERNING EACH TRADE

INVOLVED IN THE PROJECT.

2. ALL DRAWINGS ARE TO BE  READ AS A COMPLETE SET IN CONJUNCTION WITH MECHANICAL,
ELECTRICAL, GEOTECHNICAL, STRUCTURAL, AND CIVIL DOCUMENTATION, AS REQUIRED.

3. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL TEMPORARY BRACING, JOB SITE SAFETY AND
CONFORMANCE TO WCB REGULATIONS DURING CONSTRUCTION.

4. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS, ELEVATIONS, AND SITE CONDITIONS PRIOR TO 
STARTING CONSTRUCTION, AND SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY COMPOSITE DESIGN AND/OR

OWNER UPON DISCOVERING ANY DISCREPANCIES.

5. GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE SMOKE ALARMS, CARBON MONOXIDE DETECTORS,

EXHAUST FANS, FLASHING EXTERIOR WALL PENETRATIONS, AND RADON MITIGATION ARE
CARRIED OUT IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE CURRENT BCBC AND LOCAL BYLAWS.

6. GRADES SHOWN ON PLANS ARE ESTIMATED, FOUNDATION WALL HEIGHTS AND
STRUCTURAL DESIGN REQUIREMENTS MAY REQUIRE ADJUSTMENTS TO SUIT SITE
CONDITIONS.

- ASPHALT SHINGLES (SEE BUILDING ASSEMBLIES)

- BOARD AND BATTEN SIDING (FIBER CEMENT BOARD)

- HORIZONTAL PLANK SIDING (FIBER CEMENT BOARD)

- STONE VENEER

1

1

3

3

2

2

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DP PL2022-9456
DP PL2022-9456 Page 8 of 8

- 90 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
22'-2 "78"

AutoCAD SHX Text
22'-2 "78"

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.44 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
385.24 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEFT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
22'-2 "78"

AutoCAD SHX Text
22'-2 "78"

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.44 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
385.24 m

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) DUPLEX INFILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
532 FORESTBROOK DR.  PENTICTON BC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET #

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
email: info@compositedesign.ca

AutoCAD SHX Text
phone: (250) 808.7703

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL WORK IS TO BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH PART 9 OF THE BRITISH COLUMBIA BUILDING CODE. PORTIONS OF WORK FALLING OUTSIDE PART 9 SHALL BE DESIGN BY A LICENSED ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT. THESE DRAWINGS ARE THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF COMPOSITE DESIGN & DEVELOPMENT LTD. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK; ANY ERRORS OR OMISSIONS SHALL BE REPORTED WITHOUT DELAY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
of

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPT 2, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
60% DESIGN DEVELOPMENT (PRELIMINARY REVIEW ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPT 23, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
90% DESIGN DEVELOPMENT (REVIEW ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS3

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCT 4, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISS4

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
TPC REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEC 2, 2022



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: January 17, 2023     File No:    RMS/302 Eckhardt Ave W 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Steven Collyer, Planner II 
Address: 302 Eckhardt Avenue West 
  
Subject: Land Use Contract No. 3380 Discharge Bylaw No. 2023-02     
  
 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council give first reading to “Land Use Contract No. 3380 Discharge Bylaw No. 2023-02”, a bylaw to 
discharge Land Use Contract Bylaw No. 3380 from the title of Lot 1 District Lot 4 Group 7 Similkameen Division 
Yale (Formerly Yale-Lytton) District Plan 2757 Except Plan H468, located at 302 Eckhardt Avenue West; 

AND THAT Council forward “Land Use Contract No. 3380 Discharge Bylaw No. 2023-02” to the February 7, 2023 
Public Hearing. 

Proposal 

“Land Use Contract No. 3380 Discharge Bylaw No. 2023-02” would discharge Land Use Contract Bylaw No. 
3380 from the title of 302 Eckhardt Avenue West to allow the approved office building development to 
proceed before all Land Use Contracts in the Province are automatically terminated on June 30, 2024. 

Background 

Land Use Contract Bylaw No. 3380 

On September 16, 1976, Council approved “Land Use Contract Bylaw No. 3380” which enabled the 
conversion of the existing home on the property into a restaurant in the RD (Two Dwelling District) zone in 
effect at the time. 

The Land Use Contract contains the following provisions: 

• A public dining room (exclusive gourmet restaurant), which may include a licensed lounge, is the 
only permitted use on the property; 

• The building shall retain its existing architecture, character and non-commercial appearance; 
• Construction of certain landscaping and fencing elements; 
• Authorized works must have been completed within 2 years of the contract; 

- 91 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 3 

• The municipality may discharge and terminate this Land Use Contract twenty-five (25) years after its 
commencement (September 16, 2001). 

Land Use Contracts 

Land Use Contracts were used across B.C. from 1971 to 1978 as a land use development tool and was a 
contract between a municipality and developer outlining development conditions in exchange for specific 
land use approvals. Land Use Contracts were registered on the land title, and could only be amended or 
discharged by a manner specified in the contract, or by bylaw at any time with the agreement of the local 
government (after a public hearing) and the landowner(s). The Land Use Contract enabling legislation was 
repealed in 1978 so after that date no new Land Use Contracts could be created, however many Land Use 
Contracts remain in place to this day.  

All properties within the City of Penticton have been assigned an underlying zone in Zoning Bylaw 2021-01, 
including those properties that are governed by a Land Use Contract. Although all properties regulated by a 
Land Use Contract have an underlying zone, this zone has no effect on the land uses, density or building 
siting until the Land Use Contract is discharged or terminated. If a property sits within the boundaries of a 
Land Use Contract, all land use regulations are set out in the Land Use Contract. Once the Land Use Contract 
has been discharged or terminated, the underlying zoning for the property automatically comes into effect. 

Automatic Land Use Contract Termination in 2024 

In 2014, the provincial government changed the Local Government Act to automatically terminate all Land 
Use Contracts on June 30, 2024. Section 533 of the Local Government Act allows land use contract uses to 
continue as ‘non-conforming’ unless discontinued for a period of 6 or more months. If a development 
proposal is outside the scope of the land use contract, the contract must be discharged (by mutual 
agreement between the City and property owner) or terminated (City-led) prior to a building permit being 
issued to authorize the works.  

Given the proposed office development on the subject property is beyond the scope of the Land Use 
Contract, the property owner and developer have requested the Land Use Contract be discharged. Once the 
Land Use contract is discharged, the underlying zoning for the property, which allows the office use will 
come into effect. City Council may adopt a bylaw to discharge the Land Use Contract only after a public 
hearing is held, in accordance with Provincial legislation. 

Development Variance Permit and Development Permit 

On December 6, 2022, Council approved “Development Variance Permit PL2022-9405” and “Development 
Permit PL2022-9404” to vary the C1 zone front yard setback requirement from 3.0m to 2.0m and approve the 
form and character of a proposed 3-storey office building on the subject property. 

Staff have since received a legal opinion that the current Land Use Contract does restrict the permitted uses 
to only allow a restaurant as long as the Land Use Contract is in place. This does not allow the building permit 
application for the proposed office building to be submitted until after June 30, 2024, when all Land Use 
Contracts in BC are automatically terminated as per the Local Government Act. The applicants are wishing to 
develop sooner than 2024 and as such they have requested that the Land Use Contract be discharged 
(Attachment ‘A’). 

- 92 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 3 

Analysis 

All Land use Contracts in BC will be terminated as of June 30, 2024.  A Land Use Contract can be discharged 
by bylaw prior to that date with the consent of the landowner and the City. Following Council’s approval of 
the Development Variance Permit and Development Permit for the subject property on December 6, 2022, 
the applicants have requested that the Land Use Contract be discharged from title of the property 
(Attachment ‘A’).  

Staff consider that the discharge of the Land Use Contract is supportable given that the underlying C1 zoning 
on the property, which will come into effect once the Land Use Contract is discharged or terminated, allows 
an ‘office’ as a permitted use. Discharging the Land Use Contract cleans up the title of the property prior to 
the new office development proceeding. The Land Use Contract was entered into in 1976 and allowed the 
City to terminate it as early as 2001, however the City had not taken this action as there was previously no 
direction from the land owner to remove the Land Use Contract. 

Council should be aware there is no option to extend Land Use Contracts beyond June 30, 2024, given that 
date is set by Provincial legislation and there would be no authority for Land Use Contracts to be in effect or 
valid beyond that date. 

Land Use Contracts were originally approved by bylaw following a Public Hearing. As such, a Public Hearing 
is required prior to discharging a Land Use Contract before the June 30, 2024 automatic termination date. 
Therefore, staff recommend that council give first reading to “Land Use Contract No. 3380 Discharge Bylaw 
No. 2023-02” and forward the bylaw to the February 7, 2022, Public Hearing to gather any public feedback 
prior to making a final decision on this matter. 

Alternate Recommendations 

Council may choose to not discharge the Land Use Contract and keep it in effect until the contract is 
automatically terminated by the Province in 2024. This would effectively delay the commencement of 
construction on the office building until mid-2024, at which time the development could still commence 
construction within the 2-year timeline of the approved and issued development variance permit and 
development permit. 

1. THAT Council deny first reading of “Land Use Contract No. 3380 Discharge Bylaw No. 2023-02”. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Request Letter from Property Owner and Developer 
Attachment B – Land Use Contract No. 3380 Discharge Bylaw No. 2023-02 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Steven Collyer, RPP, MCIP 
Planner II 

 

Director of 
Development Services 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

BL 
DvD 

 
 

- 93 -



Attachment A - Request Letter from Property Owner and Developer- 94 -



 
 

Land Use Contract No. 3380 Discharge Bylaw No. 2023-02  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2023-02 
  

A Bylaw to authorize the discharge of a Land Use Contract  
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton adopted Bylaw No. 3380, being “Penticton Land Use Contract 
Bylaw No. 1, 1976”, approving and authorizing the execution of a Land Use Contract registered with the Land 
Title Office; 
 
AND WHEREAS the owners of the parcel of land legally described as Lot 1 District Lot 4 Group 7 Similkameen 
Division Yale (Formerly Yale-Lytton) District Plan 2757 Except Plan H468, located at 302 Eckhardt Avenue West, 
has requested that the Land Use Contract be discharged from title to that parcel;  
 
AND WHEREAS Council has the authority to discharge a land use contract pursuant to section 546 of the Local 
Government Act; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Land Use Contract No. 3380 Discharge Bylaw No. 2023-02.” 
 
2. Purpose: 
 

2.1 The Land Use Contract registered in the Land Title Office under number L54599 shall be 
discharged from title to the land legally described as Lot 1 District Lot 4 Group 7 Similkameen 
Division Yale (Formerly Yale-Lytton) District Plan 2757 Except Plan H468, located at 302 Eckhardt 
Avenue West. 

 
2.2 The Mayor and Corporate Officer of the City of Penticton are authorized to execute such 

documents on behalf of the City as may be necessary for the purpose aforesaid.   
 

    
READ A FIRST time this  day of , 2023 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this  day of , 2023 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2023 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2023 

RECEIVED the approval of the Ministry of 
Transportation on the  

 day of , 2023 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2023 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the __ day of ____, 2023 and the __ day of ____, 2023 in an online news 
source and the newspaper, pursuant to Section 94.2 of the Community Charter.  

      
 Julius Bloomfield, Mayor 
      

       
 Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 

Approved pursuant to section 52(3)(a) of the Transportation Act 

this _______ day of ____________________, 2023 

 
 
____________________________________ 
for Minister of Transportation & Infrastructure 

- 95 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 
Date: January 17, 2023       File No:    7010 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer  
From: Anthony Haddad, GM Community Services 
Subject: Resource Review Summary with Dr. Griffith 

 
Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council receive into the record the report dated January 17, 2023 titled “Resource Review Summary with Dr. 
Griffith”. 

Background 

At their meeting on December 20, 2022, staff presented an overview of the Resource Review of the Penticton RCMP 
Detachment, Penticton Fire & Rescue & Penticton Bylaw Community Safety Officer Program, that was completed 
by Dr. Curt T. Griffiths and Dr. Eli Sopow. 

The report provided a number of findings and recommendations related with the City/Community, RCMP, Fire & 
Rescue and Bylaw and Community Safety Officer Program.  Releasing and communicating the results of the review 
with the community are also an important part of this process.  While Council will potentially consider resource 
investment and actions to implement this work as part of future budget processes, staff recommended that the 
report be utilized as part of Council’s upcoming strategic planning process. 

Staff and Dr. Griffiths had the opportunity to present the report and answer questions from the public as part of 
two online information sessions, held on January 10th and 12th 2023.  Today, Dr. Griffiths will provide a more 
detailed overview of the report and will also be available to answer any questions from Council. 

Attachments: 

Attachment A – Dr Curt Griffith’s Presentation    Approvals: 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Anthony Haddad 
General Manager, Community Services 

  

Chief 
Administrative 

Officer 
 

DvD 

- 96 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 2 

Attachment A 

Dr. Curt Griffith’s Presentation 

 

- 97 -



Resource Review of the South Okanagan Detachment, Penticton Fire & Rescue, & Penticton 
Bylaw & Community Safety Officer Program

Curt Taylor Griffiths, Ph.D.
and 
Eli Sopow, Ph.D.

November 2022

- 98 -



The Project and Principles

Focused on the RCMP, Fire & Rescue, 
and Bylaws/CSOs

Conducted between November, 2021 
and May, 2022

•These agencies should ensure they are using existing resources effectively 
and efficiently

•Any new resources should be targeted in specific areas

Review based on two fundamental 
premises

Overall objective of the review: generate 
materials that will assist Council and the 

City to ensure the safety and security 
and quality of life for all residents

- 99 -



Resource 
Reviews

- 100 -



Resource Review Questions

What is the nature of the demand environment?

What is the level of resourcing for police, F&R, BL/CSOs?

What is the lived experience of personnel, community residents, 
community stakeholders?

What are the demands on police, F&R, BL/CSOs, the response to these 
demands, gaps in service levels, and how these gaps are best addressed?

What opportunities exist to improve the effectiveness and efficiency of 
service delivery?

- 101 -



Methodology

Administration of a 
community survey (N=815)

• Online using City’s data 
base of resident emails

• Residents’ perceptions of 
crime, victimization 
experiences, expectations 
of police, F&R, BL/CSOs

• Open-ended questions for 
further comment

Focus group discussions with 
community stakeholders, 

police, F&R, BL/CSOs

• Community residents, 
NGOs, high school students, 
private sector

Interviews with municipal 
and provincial personnel and 

other resource persons

- 102 -



Findings: The Municipality

There is limited 
interoperability among 

community safety 
agencies and initiatives 

The City does not have a 
Community Safety and 

Wellbeing Plan that would 
maximize resource 

allocation and impact

The City may be at its limit 
of “carrying capacity” with 

respect to shelter beds

There are significant gaps 
in provincial services

There is considerable 
potential to develop 

collaborative partnerships 
with a wide range of 

stakeholders

Community residents are a 
vital stakeholder but have 

been largely excluded 
from community safety 

initiatives

- 103 -



Recommendations: The 
Municipality

Develop a Continuum of 
Public Safety that 
includes private security, 
police, F&R, BL/CSOs and 
facilitates interoperability

1
Engage in “outside the 
box” thinking that 
empowers City staff to 
explore innovative 
sources of funding and 
partnerships

2
Create the position of 
Director of Community 
Safety to coordinate a 
multi-faceted approach

3
Develop a Community 
Safety and Wellbeing 
Plan

4
Develop capacities that, 
on paper, are the 
mandate of province

5

- 104 -



Findings: The Community

Nearly 80% of residents 
believe crime has 

increased: aligns with 
statistics

Mental health and 
homelessness top 

priorities

Most who completed the 
survey do not feel safe in 
the downtown area and 

women feel unsafe in 
their neighbourhoods

Concern with duplication 
of services, e.g. F&R and 

ambulance

Low marks to RCMP for 
community engagement

Residents lack 
information on 

community safety 
initiatives

- 105 -



Recommendations: The 
Community

If unaddressed, crime in 
Penticton will significantly 
impact the quality of life in 

the community and the 
economy

Creating safe 
neighbourhoods should be a 

priority

Creating capacity for the 
police to proactively engage 

with the community and 
engage in crime prevention 

should be a priority

A robust communication 
strategy should be 

developed to keep the 
community informed about 
crime prevention and crime 

response initiatives

Strategies should be 
developed to involve the 

community as a 
collaborative partner in 

community safety

- 106 -



Findings: The 
Policing 
Environment

Penticton has the highest Crime Severity Index score of the 
region’s five largest cities for the past 5 years; significant 
increases in total Criminal Code offences, officer caseloads 
and workload, and violent crime case burden per officer.

• Higher than comparative detachments

The challenges of homelessness, persons with mental illness 
and homelessness are placing increasing demands on the 
police

• 56% increase in mental health-related calls for service between 2019-2021
• Majority of calls for service are mental-health, not enforcement, related

The police have become the default for gaps in service 
delivery

- 107 -



Recommendations: The Policing 
Environment

Develop alternative response capacities for calls for service, 
including creation of municipal mental health crisis team, 

equipping officers with the HealthIM app, and a PACT patrol unit

Ensure interoperability among public safety agencies; increase 
police visibility; engage in reassurance and quality of life policing

- 108 -



Findings: The Detachment

The officers and civilians are 
dedicated professionals who 

are unable to effectively meet 
the demands being made on 

them

The detachment is under-
resourced and has near-zero 

capacity for community policing 

20% of the officers are non-
deployable due to stress-

related issues; civilian staff are 
similarly challenged

There are ongoing challenges in 
meeting shift minimums

There is a danger that the 
community will lose confidence 
and trust in the police
• Current concerns about the lack of 

visibility, community engagement, 
proactive policing

- 109 -



Recommendations: The  
Detachment

Provide the detachment with the resources 
required for it to be successful

Continuing under-resourcing may undermine 
public trust and confidence in the police

Reduce the call load of officers through alternative 
call response

Ensure the mental health and wellbeing of sworn 
officers and civilians

- 110 -



Findings: Community Policing

The detachment currently has no capacity for 
community policing, community engagement, 

developing and sustaining community 
partnerships, crime prevention, or problem-

solving

Previously existing programs and units have 
been discontinued and officer resources direct 

to front line response

The Community Support Response Team was 
disbanded

The SRO program was discontinued

The Youth Liaison Officer position was 
abolished

The downtown Community Police Office was 
closed

- 111 -



Recommendations: 
Community 

Policing

The detachment should develop a community policing strategy that 
would include prevention, the identification of current and potential 
partnerships, and the capacities and resources required to 
successfully execute the model 

Additional resources should be provided to facilitate the creation of a 
Community Policing Team

Funding should be provided for one SRO position in cover both high 
schools

The detachment should create an “adopt a school” program wherein 
officers would attend schools on a proactive basis

- 112 -



Findings: Police 
Response to 
Calls for 
Service

• The detachment has experienced an exponential 
growth in calls for service

• There is currently little or no triaging calls for 
service; officers are being dispatched to calls 
that do not require a law enforcement presence 
could be more effectively responded to by non-
enforcement personnel

• This high call load precludes proactive, 
community-focused policing

• In its current form, the restorative justice 
program is not effective in diverting calls away 
from frontline patrol

- 113 -



Recommendations: Calls for Service

The City should support efforts to develop alternative call response capacities to divert 
calls away from sworn officers

• The high number of mental health related calls would be better managed by a municipally-funded mental health 
crisis intervention team and a PACT unit

The detachment should develop a system for triaging calls for service, including 
developing interoperability with Bylaws and CSOs and creating a telephone response 
capacity

The restorative justice program should be strengthened by increasing referrals from 
officers and other referral sources, e.g. private busineses

- 114 -



Findings: Bylaws and Community 
Safety Officers

Bylaws is a best practice, evidence-based 
agency that provides an excellent ROI for 

the city and community

• CSOs have no legal authorities yet have a high level of interaction 
with vulnerable and at-risk persons in both an assistance and 
enforcement capacity

It is uncertain whether, as constituted, 
the CSO program is successful in its 

multi-faceted role

There is limited interoperability between 
Bylaw officers and CSOs

There is very limited interoperability 
between CSOs and RCMP officers

- 115 -



Recommendations: Bylaws and CSOs

Consideration should be 
given to pausing the 
expansion of the CSO 

program until a business plan 
with objectives and 

performance metrics

The City should join other 
municipalities in advocating 

for Special Municipal 
Constable positions

A plan should be developed 
to foster interoperability 
between Bylaw officers, 
CSOs, and RCMP officers

A communication plan 
should be developed to 

educate the public on the 
mandate and activities of 
Bylaw officers and CSOs

- 116 -



Findings: Fire & Rescue

- 117 -



Recommendations: Fire & Rescue

F&R should develop a 
strategic plan for 

resources/deployment that 
reflects the demands being 

made on the service

F&R should collaborate in 
the development of a 

collaborative framework to 
increase interoperability

Funding should be provided 
for the 

acquisition/deployment of a 
RRV that can respond to 

non-fire and medical calls

Funding should be provided 
to cross-train all firefighters 

as paramedics

F&R should engage in a 
process of “re-

identification” to ensure 
that training/resource 

acquisition/deployment 
reflect demands for service

- 118 -



Summary of Recommended Positions

RCMP Sworn Officers: 12 
Total Positions

• PACT Patrol Unit: 2
• Community/Neighbourhood 

Policing Team: 4
• School Resource Officer: 1
• Youth Liaison Officer: 1
• Traffic Section: 4

Civilian Municipal Employees:  
4 Total Positions

• Operations Team Lead: 2
• Records Clerk: 1
• Disclosure / Transcription 

Administrator: 1

- 119 -



Summary of 
Recommended 
Positions

• New Municipal Employees: 6 Total 
Positions*

• Director of Community Safety: 1
• Peer Navigator for Public Library: 1
• High School Mental Health Counsellors 

(Co-funded with Interior Health): 2
• Municipal Mental Health Crisis Team: 2
• F&R Rapid Response Vehicle: *Staffing 

TBD based on business plan

- 120 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-55  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2022-55 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-55”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01 14.2 CD2 – Comprehensive Development (270 Riverside Drive) is hereby 
amended as follows: 
 
2.1 Add the following to section 14.2.2 PERMITTED USES 

.10 vacation rental 

.11 mobile vending unit 
 

2.2 Change section 14.2.3 SUBDIVISION AND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS to read as follows: 
.9 Minimum rear yard (Wylie Street): 2.5m 

 
 
READ A FIRST time this 6 day of December, 2022 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 20 day of December, 2022 

READ A SECOND time this 20 day of December, 2022 

READ A THIRD time this 20 day of December, 2022 

RECEIVED the approval of the 
Ministry of Transportation on the 

3 day of January, 2023 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2023 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 9th day of December, 2022 and the 14th day of December, 2022 in an 
online news source and the newspaper, pursuant to Section 94.2 of the Community Charter.  

 
 

      
 Julius Bloomfield, Mayor 
      

 
 

       
 Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 

- 121 -



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT

DVP PL2022-9433 Page 1 of 4

- 122 -



DRAFT

DVP PL2022-9433 Page 2 of 4

- 123 -



150mm

2
0
0
m

m

NF

NF

NF

NFNF

NF

IP IS NOT AT TRUE CORNER

COMMERCIAL BUILDING

1.7m WOOD

1.5m CHAINLINK

GATE

CONCRETE SLAB

SECURITY

CAMERA POLE

NF

FOOD TRUCK PARKING 1

DRIVEWAY

POTENTIAL PLANTING

8
'
-
2

 
1

/
2

"

[
2

.
5

0
M

]

2
7

'
-
1

1
"

[
8

.
5

1
M

]

14'-9 1/2"

[4.50M]

8
'
-
2

 
1

/
2

"

[
2

.
5

0
M

]

8
'
-
2

 
1

/
2

"

[
2

.
5

0
M

]

2
3

'
-
0

"

[
7

.
0

1
M

]

2

A401

1

A401

2

A402

1

A402

2

A451

2

A451

1

A451

1

A451

1

A452

1

A452

8
'-
2
 1

/2
"

[2
.5

0
M

]

1

4

'
-
9

 
1

/
2

"

[
4

.
5

0

M

]

8
'-
2
 1

/2
"

[2
.5

0
M

]

P
A

N
T

R
Y

D
E

N

C
L
O

S
E

T

C
LO

S
E

T

B
E

D
R

O
O

M

L
I
V

I
N

G
 
R

O
O

M

K
I
T

C
H

E
N

D
I
N

I
N

G

B
A

T
H

R
O

O
M

PARKING SPOTS LOCATED

UNDER PARKING RAMP

10 CLASS 2

BIKE PARKING

10 CLASS 2

BIKE PARKING

95 MAILBOXES

L1 PH2 PARKING

77 STALLS

LINE OF STATUTORY RIGHT OF WAY

LINE OF STATUTORY RIGHT OF WAY

LINE OF STATUTORY RIGHT OF WAY

RI
VE

RS
ID

E 
DR

IV
E

W
Y

L
I
E

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

P
A

R
K

I
N

G
 
E

N
T

R
Y

EXISTING

NEIGHBOURING 1 STOREY

RETAIL BUILDING

PEDESTRIAN PATH

EGRESS PATH TO STREET

E
D

G
E

 O
F

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A
B

O
V

E

E
D

G
E

 O
F

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A
B

O
V

E

EDGE OF BUILDING ABOVE

R
A

M
P

 
7

5
'
8

"
 
@

 
3

.
5

%
 
=

 
2

'
-
7

"

+5'

SECURITY GATE

+1'

SECURITY GATE

R
A

M
P

 
U

P
 
2

0
'

@
 
1

0
%

 
=

 
2

'

RESIDENTS PARKING

SECURITY GATE

RESIDENTS PARKING

H

E
L
E

V
. 
3
4
2
.7

0
m

ELEV. 342.70m

 RAMP UP 183'10" @ 1.4% = 2.6'

VISITOR PARKING

HYDRANT

HYDRANT

1

2

6

'
-

6

 

1

/

2

"

 

[

3

8

.

5

7

M

]

1
2
6
'
-
1
 
1
/
2
"

[
3
8
.
4
4
M

]

E

L

:

 

3

4

2

.

3

8

m

E

L

:

 

3

4

2

.

1

0

m

E

L

:

 

3

4

2

.

1

0

m

E

L

:

 

3

4

2

.

1

0

m

E

L

:

 

3

4

1

.

5

2

m

E

L

:

 

3

4

2

.

5

4

m

E

L

:

 

3

4

1

.

9

0

m

E

L

:

 

3

4

1

.

5

2

m

E

L

:

 

3

4

1

.

4

6

m

E

L

:

 

3

4

1

.

6

0

m

E

L

:

 

3

4

1

.

9

0

m

E

L

:

 

3

4

1

.

9

0

m

E

L

:

 

3

4

2

.

7

0

m

E

L

:

 

3

4

2

.

7

0

m

E

L

:

 

3

4

1

.

9

0

m

E

L

:

 

3

4

2

.

7

0

m

E

L

:

 

3

4

2

.

3

0

m

E

L

:

 

3

4

2

.

1

0

m

L1 PH1 PARKING

61 STALLS

EXISTING

NEIGHBOURING

4 STOREY

TOWNHOMES

EXISTING PARKING LOTEXISTING PARKING LOT

R
A

M
P

 
U

P
 
3

5
'
8

"

@
 
1

5
%

 
=

 
5

'
4

"

RAMP UP 20' @ 5% = 1'

E

L

:

 

3

4

2

.

7

0

m

RAMP UP 25' @ 4% = 1'

P
M

T

 RAMP UP 12' @ 3.2% = 8"

E

L

:

 

3

4

3

.

5

0

m

E

L

:

 

3

4

2

.

9

0

m

8
'
-
2

 
1

/
2

"

[
2

.
5

0
M

]

9
'
-
9

"

[
2

.
9

7
M

]

4
1

'
-
7

"

[
1

2
.
6

8
M

]

2
8

'
-
8

"

[
8

.
7

4
M

]

1
4

0
'
-
5

"

[
4

2
.
8

0
M

]

9
'
-
0

"

[
2

.
7

4
M

]

15'-5"

[4.69M]

164'-5 1/2"

[50.13M]

90'-0"

[27.44M]

33'-10"

[10.31M]

2'-3 1/2"

[0.70M]

102'-4"

[31.19M]

138'-8"

[42.26M]

435'-11"

[132.86M]

1
3
'-
1
1
 1

/2
"

[4
.2

6
M

]

3
3
'-
4
"

[1
0
.1

6
M

]

19'-0 1/2"

[5.80M]

23'-0"

[7.01M]

38'-1"

[11.61M]

23'-0"

[7.01M]

38'-1"

[11.61M]

23'-0"

[7.01M]

19'-0 1/2"

[5.80M]

19'-0 1/2"

[5.80M]

23'-0"

[7.01M]

19'-0 1/2"

[5.80M]

23'-0"

[7.01M]

19'-0 1/2"

[5.80M]

23'-0"

[7.01M]

38'-1"

[11.61M]

1
4
'-
2
"

[4
.3

1
M

]

1
6
'
-
1
0
"

[
5
.
1
3
M

]

20'-2"

[6.14M]

VISITORS VISITORS

132'-11"

[40.51M]

2
3

'
-
0

"

[
7

.
0

1
M

]

TANDEM

TANDEM

TANDEM

1
9

'
-
0

 
1

/
2

"

[
5

.
8

0
M

]

3
4

'
-
6

"

[
1

0
.
5

2
M

]

VISITORS VISITORSVISITORSVISITORSVISITORSVISITORSVISITORSVISITORSVISITORSVISITORSVISITORSVISITORS

VISITORSVISITORSVISITORSVISITORSVISITORSVISITORSVISITORSVISITORS

VISITORS VISITORS VISITORS VISITORS VISITORS VISITORS VISITORS VISITORS VISITORS

SECURITY GATE

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

BIKES

(FENCED)

BIKES

(FENCED)

BIKES

(FENCED)

BIKES

(FENCED)

BIKES

(FENCED)

BIKES

(FENCED)

BIKES

(FENCED)

BIKES

(FENCED)

BIKES

(FENCED)

PHASE 2 PHASE 1

PH
AS

IN
G

PH
AS

IN
G

PHASE 2 PHASE 1

BIKES

(FENCED)

5
'
-
6

"

[
1

.
6

7
M

]

3
'
-
7

"

 
[
1

.
0

9
M

]

3
'
-
1

1
 
1

/
2

"

 
[
1

.
2

1
M

]

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

C
LO

SET

L
I
V

I
N

G
 
R

O
O

M

K
I
T

C
H

E
N

B
E

D
R

O
O

M

B
A

T
H

R
O

O
M

C
LO

SET

FIRE DEPARTMENT

CONNECTION

FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION

BUILDING PARKING GARAGE

LOBBY EXIT 9.12M

LOBBY EXIT 14.90M

T.D. 36.73M

T.D. 33.53M

T.D. 27.97M

T.D. 36.61M

P
A

N
T

R
Y

D

E
N

C
L
O

S
E

T

C
L
O

S
E

T

B
E

D
R

O
O

M

L
I
V

I
N

G
 
R

O
O

M

K
I
T

C
H

E
N

D
I
N

I
N

G

B
A

T
H

R
O

O
M

T.D. 41.42M

P
A

N
T

R
Y

C
L
O

S
E

T

C
L
O

S
E

T

L
I
V

I
N

G
 
R

O
O

M

B
E

D
R

O
O

M

B
E

D
R

O

O

M

B
A

T
H

R
O

O

M

K
I
T

C
H

E
N

D
I
N

I
N

G

2
1

'
-
3

"

[
6

.
4

8
M

]

253'-5 1/2"

[77.25M]

1
8
0
0
m

m

 (
6
')

T
u
rn

in
g
 S

q
u
a
re

1
8
0
0
m

m

 (
6
')

T
u
rn

in
g
 S

q
u
a
re

SUITE

TYPE C01

2 BED 701 ft²

SUITE

TYPE B21

1 BED + D 683 ft²

SUITE

TYPE B07

1 BED 548 ft²

SUITE

TYPE C26

2 BED 955 ft²

SUITE

TYPE B01

1 BED 554 ft²

E

L

:

 

3

4

2

.

7

0

m

SUITE

TYPE C30

2 BED 865 ft²

2
R

3
2

R
2

2
R

1

2V12V22V3 1V11V21V31V41V51V61V7

1
R

8
1

R
9

1
R

1
0

1
R

1
1

1V81V91V101V111V121V131V14

1
V

1
5

1
V

1
6

1
V

1
7

1
V

1
8

1
V

1
9

1V201V21

1
V

2
2

1
V

2
3

1
V

2
4

1
V

2
5

1
R

1
1

R
2

1
R

3
1

R
4

1
R

5
1

R
6

1
R

1
2

1
R

1
3

1
R

1
4

1
R

1
5

1
R

1
6

1
R

2
2

1
R

1
7

1
R

1
8

1
R

1
9

1
R

2
0

1
R

2
1

1
R

2
3

1
R

2
4

1
R

2
5

1
R

2
6

1
R

2
7

1
R

2
8

1R30 1R31 1R32 1R33 1R34 1R35 1R36

1
R

2
T

1
R

3
T

1
R

4
T

2V42V52V62V72V82V92V102V112V122V132V142V152V162V17

2
V

1
8

2
V

2
3

2
V

2
8

2
V

3
0

2
V

3
2

2
V

1
9

2
V

2
4

2
V

2
0

2
V

2
5

2
V

2
1

2
V

2
6

2
V

2
2

2
V

2
7

2
V

2
9

2
V

3
1

2
V

3
3

2
R

4

2
R

5
2

R
6

2
R

7
2

R
8

2
R

1
1

2
R

1
0

2
R

9
2

R
1

2
2

R
1

3
2

R
1

4
2

R
1

5

2
R

1
9

2
R

2
0

2
R

2
1

2
R

1
8

2
R

1
7

2
R

2
2

2
R

2
4

2
R

2
7

2
R

2
6

2
R

2
5

2
R

2
8

2
R

2
9

2
R

3
0

2
R

3
1

2
R

3
8

2
R

3
7

2
R

3
6

2
R

3
9

2
R

4
2

2
R

4
3

2
R

3
2

2
R

3
3

2
R

3
4

2
R

1
6

2
R

2
3

2
R

3
5

2
R

4
0

2
R

4
4

2
R

4
1

1
R

7

1
R

2
9

VISITOR PARKING

RAMP 19'6" @ 2.0% = 0'-8"

RAMP 19'6" @ 2.0% = 0'-8"

SUITE

TYPE C04

2 BED 804 ft²

SUITE

TYPE C29

2 BED 902 ft²

E

L

:

 

3

4

2

.

1

0

m

E

L

:

 

3

4

2

.

4

5

m

R
A

M
P

 
U

P
 
2

8
'
5

"

@
 
1

.
7

%
 
=

 
0

'
-
1

0
"

T.D. 33.30M

T.D. 44.88M

T.D. 22.63M

UU U

U U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U U

U

U U

U

U

UU

U

U U U U U U U U U U U U

U U U U U U U U U U U U UUUU U U U U

FIREWALL U

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

1
9

'
-
0

 
1

/
2

"

[
5

.
8

0
M

]

2
3

'
-
0

"

[
7

.
0

1
M

]

1
'
-
2

"

[
0

.
3

6
M

]

1
7

'
-
1

"

[
5

.
2

1
M

]

2
'
-
6

"

[
0

.
7

6
M

]

2
5

'
-
1

1
 
1

/
2

"

[
7

.
9

1
M

]

1
'
-
2

"

[
0

.
3

6
M

]

2
6

'
-
7

 
1

/
2

"

[
8

.
1

2
M

]

1
'
-
2

"

[
0

.
3

6
M

]

1
7

'
-
9

"

[
5

.
4

1
M

]

8'-10 1/2"

[2.71M]

TYP.

12'-0 1/2"

[3.67M]

TYP.

1
2

'
-
1

 
1

/
2

"

[
3

.
7

0
M

]

T
Y

P
.

8
'
-
1

0
 
1

/
2

"

[
2

.
7

1
M

]

T
Y

P
.

8
'
-
2

 
1

/
2

"

[
2

.
5

0
M

]

T
Y

P
.

8
'
-
1

0
 
1

/
2

"

[
2

.
7

1
M

]

T
Y

P
.

9'-3 1/2"

[2.83M]

19'-0 1/2"

[5.80M]

TYP.

8
'
-
1

0
 
1

/
2

"

[
2

.
7

1
M

]

T
Y

P
.

1
0

'
-
0

 
1

/
2

"

[
3

.
0

6
M

]

2
6

'
-
7

 
1

/
2

"

[
8

.
1

2
M

]

1
'
-
1

 
1

/
2

"

 
[
0

.
3

5
M

]

19'-0 1/2"

[5.80M]

TYP.

19'-0 1/2"

[5.80M]

TYP.

8
'
-
1

0
 
1

/
2

"

[
2

.
7

1
M

]

3'-7"

[1.09M]

19'-0 1/2"

[5.81M]

8'-10 1/2"

[2.71M]

8'-10 1/2"

[2.71M]

1
8

'
-
4

 
1

/
2

"

[
5

.
6

0
M

]

19'-0 1/2"

[5.80M]

TYP.

8
'
-
1

0
 
1

/
2

"

[
2

.
7

1
M

]

1
9

'
-
0

 
1

/
2

"

[
5

.
8

0
M

]

T
Y

P
.

19'-0 1/2"

[5.80M]

TYP.

1
9

'
-
0

 
1

/
2

"

[
5

.
8

0
M

]

8'-10 1/2"

[2.71M]

5
'
-
7

 
1

/
2

"

[
1

.
7

1
M

]

9
'
-
1

0
 
1

/
2

"

[
3

.
0

1
M

]

1
1

'
-
1

 
1

/
2

"

[
3

.
4

0
M

]

1
'
-
1

 
1

/
2

"

 
[
0

.
3

5
M

]

7
'
-
1

0
 
1

/
2

"

[
2

.
4

0
M

]

1
9

'
-
0

 
1

/
2

"

[
5

.
8

0
M

]

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S
V

I
S

I
T

O
R

S
V

I
S

I
T

O
R

S
V

I
S

I
T

O
R

S

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S

VISITORSVISITORS

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S
V

I
S

I
T

O
R

S

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S

SUITE

TYPE B21

1 BED + D 683 ft²

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S

P
A

N
T

R
Y

C
L
O

S
E

T

C
L
O

S
E

T

D

E
N

L
I
V

I
N

G
 
R

O
O

M

B
E

D
R

O
O

M

B
E

D
R

O

O

M

B
A

T
H

R
O

O
M

K
I
T

C
H

E
N

D
I
N

I
N

G

BED
R

O
O

M

LIVING ROOM

KITCHEN

DINING

BATHROOM

BATHROOM

BED
R

O
O

M

STORAGE

CLOSET

C
LO

SET

CLOSET

CLOSET

BEDROOMLIVING ROOM

KITCHEN

DINING

BATHROOM

BEDROOM

C
L
O

S
E

T

BATHROOM

C
L
O

S
E

T

CLOSET

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S

V
I
S

I
T

O
R

S

SUITE

TYPE C01

2 BED 701 ft²

STORAGE

LIVING ROOM

BATHROOM

KITCHEN

BED
R

O
O

M

P
A

N
T

R
Y

C
L
O

S
E

T

CLOSET

L
I
V

I
N

G
 
R

O
O

M

B
E

D
R

O
O

M

B
E

D
R

O
O

M

B
A

T
H

R
O

O
M

K
I
T

C
H

E
N

D
I
N

I
N

G

C
L
O

S
E

T

C
L
O

S
E

T

B
E

D
R

O

O

M

L
IV

IN
G

 R
O

O
M

K
IT

C
H

E
N

D
IN

IN
G

B
A

T
H

R
O

O

M

B
A

T
H

R
O

O

M

B
E

D
R

O
O

M

C
L
O

S
E

T

C
L
O

S
E

T

C
LO

S
E

T

SMALL

S
M

A
L

L
S

M
A

L
L

SMALL SMALL SMALL SMALL SMALL

S
M

A
L

L

S
M

A
L

L

S
M

A
L

L

S
M

A
L

L

S
M

A
L

L

S
M

A
L

L
S

M
A

L
L

S
M

A
L

L
S

M
A

L
L

S
M

A
L

L
S

M
A

L
L

S
M

A
L

L
S

M
A

L
L

S
M

A
L

L
S

M
A

L
L

S
M

A
L

L
S

M
A

L
L

SMALL

SMALL

11'-6 1/2"

[3.52M]

SUITE

TYPE B07

1 BED 548 ft²

EXISTING

NEIGHBOURING

4 STOREY

TOWNHOMES

EXISTING

NEIGHBOURING

4 STOREY

TOWNHOMES

EXISTING

NEIGHBOURING

4 STOREY

TOWNHOMES

LOBBY

127

MAIL

125

GARBAGE/

RECYCLING

128

ELECTRICAL

ROOM

122

ELEV

342.70m

ELEV

342.70m

ELEV

341.90m

ELEV

342.70m

MECHANICAL

ROOM

120

ELEV

342.70m

ELEV

342.70m

ELEV

342.70m

ELEV

342.90m

STORAGE

130

BIKE LOCKERS

129

BIKE

LOCKERS

137

ELECTRICAL

ROOM

136

ELEV

342.70m

SOUTH

LOBBY

135

BIKE

LOCKERS

134

BIKE

LOCKERS

131

BIKE

LOCKERS

132

BIKE

REPAIR &

WASH

133

SECURITY GATE

ELEV

342.70m

ELEV

342.70m

ELECTRICAL

ROOM

111

ELEV

342.70m

PARCEL

124

MAIL

109

PARCEL

110

GARBAGE/

RECYCLING

115

STAIR #3

S3L1

STAIR #1

S1L1

STAIR #2

S2L1

STAIR #4

S4L1

STAIR #6

S6L1

STAIR #5

S5L1

STAIR #7

S7L1

ELEV. #1

ELEV. #2

E
L

E
V

.
 
#

3

BUILDING

PH2 EAST

BUILDING

PH2 WEST

BUILDING

PH1 NORTH

BUILDING

PH1 SOUTH

ELEV

341.90m

ELEV

342.70m

1'-0"

[0.30M]

8'-10 1/2"

[2.71M]

2'-0"

[0.61M]

1'-0"

[0.30M]

2'-10"

[0.86M]

1
'
-
1

 
1

/
2

"

 
[
0

.
3

5
M

]

1
'
-
1

 
1

/
2

"

 
[
0

.
3

5
M

]

2
'
-
9

"

[
0

.
8

4
M

]

1'-0"

[0.30M]

1'-0"

[0.31M]

2'-7"

[0.79M]

1
'
-
0

 
1

/
2

"

[
0

.
3

1
M

]

1
'
-
0

"

 
[
0

.
3

0
M

]

1
'
-
0

"

 
[
0

.
3

0
M

]

1
'
-
0

"

 
[
0

.
3

0
M

]

1
'
-
0

"

 
[
0

.
3

0
M

]

1
'
-
0

"

 
[
0

.
3

0
M

]

1
'
-
0

"

 
[
0

.
3

0
M

]

1
'
-
0

"

 
[
0

.
3

0
M

]

1
'
-
0

"

 
[
0

.
3

0
M

]

1
'
-
0

"

 
[
0

.
3

0
M

]

1
'
-
0

"

 
[
0

.
3

0
M

]

1
'
-
0

"

 
[
0

.
3

0
M

]

1
'
-
0

"

 
[
0

.
3

0
M

]

1
'
-
0

"

 
[
0

.
3

0
M

]

1
'
-
0

"

 
[
0

.
3

0
M

]

1
'
-
1

0
"

[
0

.
5

6
M

]

1'-0"

 [0.30M]

1'-0"

 [0.30M]

1
'
-
0

"

 
[
0

.
3

0
M

]

106

101

103

104

105

CORRIDOR

108

LOBBY

112

VESTIBULE

114

VESTIBULE

107

116

117

118

119

CORRIDOR

121

CORRIDOR

123

102

VESTIBULE

113

VESTIBULE

126

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, PROPERTY OF THE ARCHITECTS, USE OR

REPRODUCTION PROHIBITED WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN PERMISSION.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REVIEW THE DOCUMENTS FOR CONFORMANCE

WITH CODES AND BY-LAWS AND SHALL ADVISE THE ARCHITECTS  OF ANY

DISCREPANCIES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CHECK AND VERIFY ALL

DIMENSIONS AND REPORT ALL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS TO THE DESIGNER.

DO NOT SCALE THE DRAWINGS.

THIS DRAWINGS IS INTENDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY. THE CONTRACTOR

AND ANY PERSON USING THIS DRAWING FOR INFORMATION ARE ADVISED TO

REFER TO CIVIL, STRUCTURAL, MECHANICAL, SPRINKLER, ELECTRICAL,

LANDSCAPE AND INTERIOR DESIGN DISCIPLINE DRAWINGS FOR

INFORMATION RELATING TO THOSE DISCIPLINES.

PRIME CONSULTANT

DRAWN BY:

SCALE: PROJECT NO:

DATENO REMARKS

SEAL

DATE:

CONSULTANT

SOKANA

6 Storey Apartment Building

270

Riverside Drive

Penticton, British Columbia

FORM
a r c h i t e c t u r e

OSIS
200-211 Columbia Street  I  Vancouver  I  BC  I  V6A 2R5
T       604 688 7582
E       studio@formosis.ca                        www.formosis.ca

SITE PLAN

 DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

A152

1:200

SP

2207

JUNE 2022

NORTH

1 ISSUED FOR PRE-APP2022-07-11

2 ISSUED FOR DP2022-08-26

3 ISSUED FOR DP

COMMENTS RESPONSE

2022-11-09

4 ISSUED FOR DP

COMMENTS R2

2022-11-24

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DVP PL2022-9433

DVP PL2022-9433 Page 3 of 4

- 124 -

https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Tables.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx
https://www.landscapeforms.com/en-US/product/Pages/Chipman-Chair.aspx


1
8
0
0
m

m

 (
6
')

T
u
rn

in
g
 S

q
u
a
re

1
8
0
0
m

m

 (
6
')

T
u
rn

in
g
 S

q
u
a
re

B
E

D
R

O
O

M

K
IT

C
H

E
N

D
IN

IN
G

B
A

T
H

R
O

O
M

L
IV

IN
G

 R
O

O
M

B
E

D
R

O
O

M

B
A

T
H

R
O

O
M

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

C
L
O

S
E

T

C
LO

S
E

T

C
L
O

S
E

T

STORAGE

LOCKER

STORAGE

LOCKER

STORAGE

LOCKER

STORAGE

LOCKER

STORAGE

LOCKER

STORAGE

LOCKER

STORAGE

LOCKER

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

VERTICAL

CLASS A

VERTICAL

CLASS A

VERTICAL

CLASS A

VERTICAL

CLASS A

VERTICAL

CLASS A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

L
O

C
K

E
R

C
L
A

S
S

 
A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

LOCKER

CLASS A

BIKES

(FENCED)

BIKES

(FENCED)

BIKES

(FENCED)

BIKES

(FENCED)

BIKES

(FENCED)

BIKES

(FENCED)

BIKES

(FENCED)

BIKES

(FENCED)

BIKES

(FENCED)

BED
R

O
O

M

LIVING ROOM

KITCHEN

DINING

BATHROOM

BATHROOM

BED
R

O
O

M

STORAGE

CLOSET

C
LO

SET

CLOSET

CLOSET

POOL ABOVE

E

L

:

 

3

4

5

.

7

0

m

5'-1"

[1.55M]

5
'-0

"

[1
.5

2
M

]

1
 1

/2
"

[0
.0

4
M

]

E

L

:

 

3

4

3

.

5

0

m

E

L

:

 

3

4

5

.

1

0

m

BEDROOMLIVING ROOM

KITCHEN

DINING

BATHROOM

BEDROOM

C
L
O

S
E

T

BATHROOM

C
L
O

S
E

T

CLOSET

D
C

W
/
D

W
H

PHASE 2 PHASE 1

PH
AS

IN
G

PH
AS

IN
G

PHASE 2 PHASE 1

SUITE

TYPE C01

2 BED 701 ft²

SUITE

TYPE B21

1 BED + D 683 ft²

SUITE

TYPE C26

2 BED 955 ft²

SUITE

TYPE C04

2 BED 804 ft²

SUITE

TYPE C01

2 BED 701 ft²

SUITE

TYPE C29

2 BED 902 ft²

SUITE

TYPE C27

2 BED 985 ft²

T.D. 29.93M

T.D. 23.8M

T.D. 41.70M

T.D. 37.43M

T.D. 27.98M

T.D. 36.42M

T.D. 23.41M

T.D. 26.73M

T.D. 30.85M

T.D. 25.30M

T.D. 28.22M

T.D. 23.90M

T.D. 31.40M

T.D. 39.29M

2

A401

1

A401

2

A402

1

A402

2

A451

2

A451

1

A451

1

A451

1

A452

1

A452

1800mm (6')

Turning Square

MUA

UU U

U U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U U

U

U U

U

U

UU

U

U U U U U U U U U U U U

U U U U U U U U U U U U UUUU U U U U

FIREWALL U

1
R

6
3

1
R

7
7

1R371R381R391R401R411R421R431R441R451R461R471R481R491R50

1
R

5
4

1R511R521R53

1
R

5
5

1
R

5
6

1
R

5
7

1
R

5
8

1
R

5
4

1
R

5
9

1
R

6
0

1
R

6
1

1
R

6
2

1
R

6
4

1
R

6
5

1
R

6
6

1
R

6
7

1
R

6
8

1
R

6
9

1
R

7
0

1
R

7
1

1
R

7
2

1
R

7
3

1
R

7
4

1
R

7
5

1
R

7
6

1
R

8
8

1
R

7
8

1
R

8
9

1
R

7
9

1
R

9
0

1
R

8
0

1
R

9
1

1
R

8
1

1
R

9
2

1
R

8
2

1
R

9
3

1
R

8
3

1
R

9
4

1
R

8
4

1
R

9
5

1
R

8
5

1
R

9
6

1
R

8
6

1
R

9
7

1
R

8
7

1
R

9
8

1
R

5
8

T
1

R
5

4
T

1
R

5
9

T
1

R
6

1
T

1
R

6
2

T

2R45

2
R

6
2

2
R

7
2

2R462R472R482R492R502R512R522R532R542R552R562R572R582R592R602R61

2
R

6
3

2
R

7
3

2
R

6
4

2
R

7
4

2
R

6
5

2
R

7
5

2
R

6
6

2
R

7
6

2
R

6
7

2
R

7
7

2
R

6
8

2
R

7
8

2
R

6
9

2
R

7
9

2
R

7
0

2
R

7
1

2
R

8
0

2
R

8
1

2
R

8
2

2
R

8
3

2
R

8
4

2
R

8
5

2
R

8
6

2
R

8
7

2
R

8
8

2
R

8
9

2
R

9
0

2
R

9
1

2
R

9
7

2
R

9
8

2
R

9
9

2
R

1
0

0
2

R
1

0
1

2
R

1
0

2
2

R
1

0
3

2
R

1
0

4
2

R
1

0
5

2
R

1
1

1
2

R
1

1
2

2
R

1
1

3
2

R
1

1
4

2
R

1
1

5
2

R
1

1
6

2
R

1
1

7
2

R
1

1
8

2
R

1
1

9

2
R

1
2

3
2

R
1

2
7

2
R

1
2

8
2

R
1

2
9

2
R

1
3

0
2

R
1

3
1

2
R

1
3

2
2

R
1

3
3

2
R

9
5

2
R

9
6

2
R

1
0

9
2

R
1

1
0

2
R

1
0

6
2

R
1

0
7

2
R

1
2

0
2

R
1

2
1

2
R

1
2

4
2

R
1

2
5

2
R

1
2

6

2
R

9
2

2
R

9
3

2
R

9
4

2
R

1
0

8

2
R

1
2

2

2
7

'
-
1

1
"

[
8

.
5

1
M

]

38'-1"

[11.61M]

1
'
-
2

"

[
0

.
3

6
M

]

4
1

'
-
7

 
1

/
2

"

[
1

2
.
6

8
M

]

9
'
-
9

"

[
2

.
9

7
M

]

8
'
-
2

 
1

/
2

"

[
2

.
5

0
M

]

132'-0"

[40.23M]

106'-9 1/2"

[32.55M]

135'-1 1/2"

[41.18M]

26'-5 1/2"

[8.07M]

2
8

'
-
3

 
1

/
2

"

[
8

.
6

2
M

]

1
7

4
'
-
9

"

[
5

3
.
2

7
M

]

9
'
-
0

 
1

/
2

"

[
2

.
7

5
M

]

436'-11 1/2"

[133.19M]

1
4
'-
0
"

[4
.2

6
M

]

1
1
'-
9
 1

/2
"

[3
.5

9
M

]

7
'-
2
"

[2
.1

8
M

]

1
'-
0
"

[0
.3

1
M

]

23'-0"

[7.01M]

23'-0"

[7.01M]

38'-1"

[11.61M]

23'-0"

[7.01M]

19'-0 1/2"

[5.80M]

19'-0 1/2"

[5.80M]

23'-0"

[7.01M]

19'-0 1/2"

[5.80M]

23'-0"

[7.01M]

19'-0 1/2"

[5.80M]

23'-0"

[7.01M]

38'-1"

[11.61M]

1
9

'
-
0

 
1

/
2

"

[
5

.
8

0
M

]

2
3

'
-
0

"

[
7

.
0

1
M

]

1
'
-
2

"

[
0

.
3

6
M

]

1
7

'
-
9

"

[
5

.
4

1
M

]

1
'
-
2

"

[
0

.
3

6
M

]

2
6

'
-
7

 
1

/
2

"

[
8

.
1

2
M

]

1
'
-
2

"

[
0

.
3

6
M

]

2
6

'
-
7

 
1

/
2

"

[
8

.
1

2
M

]

1
'
-
2

"

[
0

.
3

6
M

]

2
6

'
-
7

 
1

/
2

"

[
8

.
1

2
M

]

2
6

'
-
7

 
1

/
2

"

[
8

.
1

2
M

]

1
'
-
1

 
1

/
2

"

 
[
0

.
3

5
M

]

3
'
-
7

"

[
1

.
0

9
M

]

P
A

N
T

R
Y

C
L
O

S
E

T

C
L
O

S
E

T

L
I
V

I
N

G
 
R

O
O

M

B
E

D
R

O
O

M

B
E

D
R

O
O

M

B
A

T
H

R
O

O
M

K
I
T

C
H

E
N

D
I
N

I
N

G

P
A

N
T

R
Y

C
L
O

S
E

T

C
L
O

S
E

T

D

E
N

B
E

D
R

O
O

M

L
I
V

I
N

G
 
R

O
O

M

B
E

D
R

O
O

M

K
I
T

C
H

E
N

D
I
N

I
N

G

B
A

T
H

R
O

O

M

2
3
'-
8
 1

/2
"

[7
.2

3
M

]

C
L
O

S
E

T

C
L
O

S
E

T

P
A

N
T

R
Y

B
E

D
R

O
O

M

L
I
V

I
N

G
 
R

O
O

M

K
I
T

C
H

E
N

D
I
N

I
N

G

D

E
N

B
A

T
H

R
O

O

M

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

L
I
V

I
N

G
 
R

O
O

M

B
A

T
H

R
O

O
M

C
L
O

S
E

T

B
E

D
R

O
O

M

C
LO

SET

K
I
T

C
H

E
N

SUITE

TYPE B02

1 BED 554 ft²

P
A

N
T

R
Y

C
LO

SET

C
L
O

S
E

T

L
I
V

I
N

G
 
R

O
O

M

B
E

D
R

O
O

M

B
E

D
R

O
O

M

B
A

T
H

R
O

O
M

K
I
T

C
H

E
N

D
I
N

I
N

G

CLOSET

C
L
O

S
E

T

P
A

N
T

R
Y

B
E

D
R

O
O

M

L
I
V

I
N

G
 
R

O
O

M

K
I
T

C
H

E
N

D
I
N

I
N

G

D
E

N

B
A

T
H

R
O

O
M

SUITE

TYPE B08

1 BED

Unit Area: 596 sq.ft.

5
 
T

A
N

D
E

M
 
P

A
R

K
I
N

G
 
S

P
A

C
E

S
 
N

O
T

 
C

O
U

N
T

A
B

L
E

 
F

O
R

 
P

E
N

T
I
C

T
O

N
 
P

A
R

K
I
N

G
 
R

E
Q

U
I
E

M
E

N
T

S
 
B

U
T

 
S

A
L

E
A

B
L

E

W
I
T

H
 
T

W
O

-
B

E
D

R
O

O
M

 
U

N
I
T

S

L2 PH2 PARKING

89 STALLS

L2 PH1 PARKING

63 STALLS

R
A

M
P

 
D

O
W

N
 
2

0
'

@
 
1

0
%

 
=

 
2

'

R
A

M
P

 
D

O
W

N
 
3

5
'
8

"

@
 
1

5
%

 
=

 
5

'
4

"

R
A

M
P

 
D

O
W

N
 
2

0
'

@
 
1

0
%

 
=

 
2

'

OPEN TO BELOW

EDGE OF BUILDING ABOVE EDGE OF BUILDING ABOVE

EDGE OF BUILDING ABOVE

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

E.V.

8
'
-
2

 
1

/
2

"

[
2

.
5

0
M

]

18'-4 1/2"

[5.60M]

TYP.

8
'
-
1

0
 
1

/
2

"

[
2

.
7

1
M

]

T
Y

P
.

12'-1 1/2"

[3.70M]

1
9

'
-
0

 
1

/
2

"

[
5

.
8

0
M

]

1
8

'
-
4

 
1

/
2

"

[
5

.
6

0
M

]

8'-10 1/2"

[2.71M]

19'-0 1/2"

[5.80M]

8
'
-
1

0
 
1

/
2

"

[
2

.
7

1
M

]

18'-4 1/2"

[5.60M]

8
'
-
2

 
1

/
2

"

[
2

.
5

0
M

]

8
'
-
1

0
 
1

/
2

"

[
2

.
7

1
M

]

19'-0 1/2"

[5.80M]

8
'
-
1

0
 
1

/
2

"

[
2

.
7

1
M

]

5
'
-
6

"

[
1

.
6

7
M

]

10'-0"

[3.04M]

19'-0 1/2"

[5.80M]

1
7

'
-
0

"

[
5

.
1

8
M

]

1
7

'
-
9

"

[
5

.
4

1
M

]

19'-0 1/2"

[5.80M]

TYP.

BUILDING PARKING GARAGE

8
'
-
1

0
 
1

/
2

"

[
2

.
7

1
M

]

T
Y

P
.

2
6

'
-
7

 
1

/
2

"

[
8

.
1

2
M

]

3
'
-
1

"

 
[
0

.
9

4
M

]

3'-6"

[1.06M]

19'-0 1/2"

[5.80M]

8
'
-
1

0
 
1

/
2

"

[
2

.
7

1
M

]

19'-0 1/2"

[5.80M]

2
6

'
-
7

 
1

/
2

"

[
8

.
1

2
M

]

7
'
-
9

 
1

/
2

"

[
2

.
3

7
M

]

1
7

'
-
9

"

[
5

.
4

1
M

]

2
'
-
5

"

[
0

.
7

3
M

]

19'-0 1/2"

[5.80M]

19'-0 1/2"

[5.80M]

1
9

'
-
0

 
1

/
2

"

[
5

.
8

0
M

]

8'-10 1/2"

[2.71M]

TANDEM

TANDEM

TANDEM

TANDEM

TANDEM

STORAGE

LIVING ROOM

BATHROOM

KITCHEN

BED
R

O
O

M S
M

A
L

L

S
M

A
L

L

S
M

A
L

L

S
M

A
L

L

SMALL SMALL SMALL SMALL SMALLSMALL SMALL

S
M

A
L

L
S

M
A

L
L

S
M

A
L

L
S

M
A

L
L

SMALL

S
M

A
L

L

SUITE

TYPE C05

2 BED 804 ft²

SUITE

TYPE B07

1 BED 548 ft²

SUITE

TYPE B22

1 BED + D 683 ft²

SUITE

TYPE B22

1 BED + D 683 ft²

SUITE

TYPE C02

2 BED 804 ft²

SUITE

TYPE C02

2 BED 804 ft²

ELEV

345.70m

LOBBY

221

AMENITY

FITNESS

ROOM

220

STORAGE

219

STAIR #3

S3L2

STAIR #1

S1L2

STAIR #2

S2L2

STAIR #4

S4L2

STAIR #6

S6L2

STAIR #5

S5L2

STAIR #7

S7L2

ELEV. #1

ELEV. #2

E
L

E
V

.
 
#

3

BUILDING

PH2 EAST

BUILDING

PH2 WEST

BUILDING

PH1 NORTH

BUILDING

PH1 SOUTH

BIKE

LOCKERS

225

BIKE

LOCKERS

224

BIKE

LOCKERS

212

POOL

MECHANICAL

EQUIPMENT

226

STORAGE

LOCKERS

223

STORAGE

222

ELEV

345.70m

ELEV

345.70m

ELEV

345.70m

ELEV

345.70m

ELEV

345.70m

ELEV

345.70m

ELEV

345.70m

1
'
-
1

 
1

/
2

"

 
[
0

.
3

5
M

]

1
'
-
1

 
1

/
2

"

 
[
0

.
3

5
M

]

1'-0"

[0.30M]

3'-1"

[0.94M]

1
'
-
0

"

[
0

.
3

1
M

]

1
'
-
0

 
1

/
2

"

[
0

.
3

2
M

]

1
'
-
0

"

[
0

.
3

0
M

]

1
9

9
'
-
8

 
1

/
2

"

[
6

0
.
8

8
M

]

1
'
-
9

"

[
0

.
5

3
M

]

2'-0"

[0.61M]

206

201

202

203

204

205

1'-0"

 [0.30M]

1'-0"

 [0.30M]

1
'
-
0

"

 
[
0

.
3

0
M

]

1
'
-
0

"

 
[
0

.
3

0
M

]

CORRIDOR

208

AMENITY

FITNESS

ROOM

209

LOBBY

210

VESTIBULE

211

VESTIBULE

207

213

214

215

216

CORRIDOR

217

CORRIDOR

218

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, PROPERTY OF THE ARCHITECTS, USE OR

REPRODUCTION PROHIBITED WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN PERMISSION.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REVIEW THE DOCUMENTS FOR CONFORMANCE

WITH CODES AND BY-LAWS AND SHALL ADVISE THE ARCHITECTS  OF ANY

DISCREPANCIES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CHECK AND VERIFY ALL

DIMENSIONS AND REPORT ALL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS TO THE DESIGNER.

DO NOT SCALE THE DRAWINGS.

THIS DRAWINGS IS INTENDED FOR INFORMATION ONLY. THE CONTRACTOR

AND ANY PERSON USING THIS DRAWING FOR INFORMATION ARE ADVISED TO

REFER TO CIVIL, STRUCTURAL, MECHANICAL, SPRINKLER, ELECTRICAL,

LANDSCAPE AND INTERIOR DESIGN DISCIPLINE DRAWINGS FOR

INFORMATION RELATING TO THOSE DISCIPLINES.

PRIME CONSULTANT

DRAWN BY:

SCALE: PROJECT NO:

DATENO REMARKS

SEAL

DATE:

CONSULTANT

SOKANA

6 Storey Apartment Building

270

Riverside Drive

Penticton, British Columbia

FORM
a r c h i t e c t u r e

OSIS
200-211 Columbia Street  I  Vancouver  I  BC  I  V6A 2R5
T       604 688 7582
E       studio@formosis.ca                        www.formosis.ca

L2 PLAN

 DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

A212

1:200

SP/NC

2207

JUNE 2022

NORTH

1 ISSUED FOR PRE-APP2022-07-11

2 ISSUED FOR DP2022-08-26

3 ISSUED FOR DP

COMMENTS RESPONSE

2022-11-09

4 ISSUED FOR DP

COMMENTS R2

2022-11-24

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DVP PL2022-9433

DVP PL2022-9433 Page 4 of 4

- 125 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-56  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2022-56 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2021-01 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2022-56”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

Zoning Bylaw No. 2021-01 is hereby amended as follows: 
 
2.1 Rezone Lot 9 District Lot 116 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 25549, located at 170 

Arnott Place from R1 (Large Lot Residential) to RD1 (Duplex Housing) as shown on Schedule ‘A’.  
 

2.2 Add Section 10.4.4 SITE SPECIFIC PROVISIONS: .1 “In the case of Lot 9 District Lot 116 
Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 25549, located at 170 Arnott Place, a maximum of two 
dwelling units shall be permitted. 
 

2.3 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST time this 20 day of December, 2022 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 17 day of January, 2023 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2023 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2023 

RECEIVED the approval of the 
Ministry of Transportation on the 

 day of , 2023 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2023 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 6th day of January, 2023 and the 11th day of January, 2023 in an 
online news source and the newspaper, pursuant to Section 94.2 of the Community Charter.  

 
 

      
 Julius Bloomfield, Mayor 
      

 
       

 Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
  

Approved pursuant to section 52(3)(a) of the Transportation Act 

this _______ day of ____________________, 2022 

 
 
____________________________________ 
for Minister of Transportation & Infrastructure 

- 126 -



�����
���	
��	����������	�
�	��������������

 	!�"�#$"	�%&'()*+,-.'/*)0*,/)123'4,1)*,5+,-4678)0)/-,592*),/)/7,*&45)/*'32/33):)*28-,59;%&'1,650'<2006520+2/30,948'*'/'11,-*&)1)/-,592*),/=25)'1;>125'168*<*&'()*+3,'1/,*?2552/*)/2/+?2+*&'9244)/:)/-,592*),/)/0863)/:*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-;%&'61'5,-*&)1)/-,592*),/3,'11,2**&')5,?/5)1@2/31&,683/,*5'8+64,/*&')/-,592*),/?)*&,6*)/3'4'/3'/*='5)-)02*),/21*,*&'2006520+,516)*27)8)*+*&'5',-; ABCDE E FEDFG'*'51H	�	�I	!JKL����JJ��J�K��M N��!
����	��"�	��O�HJPQKN�R�$ M���	JJO

- 127 -

mcdonah
Typewritten Text
Date:                                              Corporate Officer:



Notice of Motion 
Amendment to Council Procedure Bylaw No. 
2018-35

WHEREAS


1. Public Question Period does not have a set time but variable times due to 
the level of detail, debate, and length of presentations of agenda items. 
This makes it difficult for the public to attend Public Question Period.


2. Public Question Period is limited to 15 minutes and each speaker 
receives 2 minutes to ask a question. This makes it difficult for multiple 
members of the community to ask questions to council and some may 
not get a chance to ask a question.


3. Open Houses are meetings where members of the community come to 
discuss relevant issues, concerns, and subjects with public officials, 
government representatives, or decision-makers of some sort. 
Participants are able to ask questions of officials, and officials have the 
opportunity to learn about the community’s concerns and feedback. It is 
essentially a question and answer session, and does not include in-depth 
discussion or deliberation.


4. Open Houses on a separate date from regular council meetings, in the 
evening, and outside of the council chambers, will provide our community 
members a much better avenue of engagement with our city council and 
senior level staff. Instead of variable times when Public Question Period 
will happen, a set time and date can be established. Having the Open 
House outside of the council chambers allows for a more informal and a 
pressure free format for community members.


THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED


THAT Council direct staff to develop a quarterly Open House format on a 
separate date from regular council meetings, in the evening, and outside of the 
council chambers to allow community members to convene in order to discuss 
relevant concerns and/or specific subjects they have brought through Shape 
Your City with City Council and senior level staff; 

AND THAT Council direct staff to prepare an amendment to Council Procedure 
By-law No. 2018-35 and alter the order of proceedings and business section 23 
(1) and move (a) Notice of Motion after (j) Staff Reports; and remove Council 
Round Table and Public Question Period

- 128 -


	1. Call to Order
	The Mayor called the Regular Council Meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.
	3. Adoption of Agenda
	4. Recess to Committee of the Whole
	5. Reconvene the Regular Council Meeting
	6. Adoption of Minutes:
	7. Consent Agenda:
	8. Staff Reports:
	9. Public Question Period
	10. Recess into a Closed Meeting
	11. Reconvene the Regular Council Meeting following the Public Hearing at 6:00 p.m.
	12. Bylaws and Permits
	13. Notice of Motion
	14. Business Arising
	15. Public Question Period
	16. Council Round Table
	17. Adjournment
	7.1 - 2022-12-20 COW Minutes - Hayley.pdf
	1. Call to order
	The Mayor called the Committee of the Whole meeting to order at 1:01 p.m.
	2. Adoption of Agenda
	THAT the agenda for the Committee of the Whole meeting held on December 20, 2022 be adopted as presented.
	3. Delegations:
	4. Adjourn to Regular Meeting

	7.2 - 2022-12-20 Public Hearing Minutes.pdf
	1. Call to order

	8.4.a - Attachments D-H.pdf
	Attachment D
	Attachment E
	Attachment F
	Attachment G
	Attachment H

	8.4.c - DRAFT DVP PL2022-9455.pdf
	DRAFT DVP PL2022-9455
	Schedule A
	Sheets and Views
	A1.0 Building Summary-A1.0 Development Summary
	Site Plan




	8.4.d - DRAFT DP PL2022-9456.pdf
	DRAFT DP PL2022-9456
	Schedule A
	Sheets and Views
	A1.0 Building Summary-A1.0 Development Summary
	Site Plan

	A1.1 Landscape Plan-A1.1 Landscape Plan
	A2.0 Foundation & Main Floor-A2.0 Foundation & Main Floor
	Foundation Layout
	Main Floor

	A2.1 Upper Floor & Roof-A2.1 Upper Floor & Roof
	Upper Floor
	Roof

	A3.0 Elevations-A3.0 Elevations
	Front Elevation
	Right Elevation

	A3.1 Elevations-A3.1 Elevations
	Rear Elevation
	Left Elevation




	11.1.a - 2023-01-17 - Penticton Resource Review Final Report PPT - Curt.pdf
	�Resource Review of the South Okanagan Detachment, Penticton Fire & Rescue, & Penticton Bylaw & Community Safety Officer Program��Curt Taylor Griffiths, Ph.D.�and �Eli Sopow, Ph.D.��November 2022�
	The Project and Principles
	Resource Reviews
	Resource Review Questions
	Methodology
	Findings: The Municipality
	Recommendations: The Municipality
	Findings: The Community
	Recommendations: The Community
	Findings: The Policing Environment
	Recommendations: The Policing Environment
	Findings: The Detachment
	Recommendations: The  Detachment
	Findings: Community Policing
	Recommendations: Community Policing
	Findings: Police Response to Calls for Service
	Recommendations: Calls for Service
	Findings: Bylaws and Community Safety Officers
	Recommendations: Bylaws and CSOs
	Findings: Fire & Rescue
	Recommendations: Fire & Rescue
	Summary of Recommended Positions
	Summary of Recommended Positions

	12.1.a - 2022-55 - DRAFT DVP PL2022-9433 - 270 Riverside Drive.pdf
	DRAFT DVP PL2022-9433
	Schedule A




